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THE COURT: Good morning. Court will be in
session. You can be seated. All right, so we're going
to be on the record this morning.

Today is, excuse me, July 20. It's 8:42 in
the morning. The time was originally set for 8:30 for

the preliminary hearing in Case No. EL-JC-CR-F-18-5030.

This is the Elko Justice Court. I'm Elko Justice of the
Peace Elias Goicoechea.

We're here on a criminal complaint filed in
our office June 20th, which alleged that on or about the
31st day of December, 2017, and/or the 1lst day of
January, 2018, at or near the location of the City of
Elko, within the County’of Elko, and the State of
Nevada, that there was the following described criminal
offense:

Count 1 was sexual assault on a child under
the age of 16 years. That's a felony. In the
alternative to Count 1, Count 2, statutory sexual
seduction, a category B felony, or in the alternative to
Counts 1 and 2, Count 3, lewdness with a 14 or

15-year-old child, a category B felony.

And this is -- this case is the State of
Nevada versus Kevin John Mentaberry. The record will
reflect Mr. Mentaberry is present in court. He is in

custody with his attorney, Gary Woodbury. And Mr. Slade

Nevada Dictation - (° )y T 27
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THE COURT: All right, Mr. de, do you have
any other witnesses?

MR. SLADE: The State does, Your Honor. The
witnesses that the State anticipates calling are
Michael Marshowsky, M-A-R-S-H-O-W-S-K-Y; Shawna Eklund,
E-K-L-U-N-D; AH; Josh Morrell. The State also has under
subpoena and present in court, Kyle Craig, C-R-A-I-G,
and I believe it's Diane --

Is it Diane?

MS. CRABTREE: Diane.

MR. SLADE: Sorry, Diane Crabtree,

C-R-A-B-T-R-E-E. And that's it for the State.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Woodbury, do you
have any witnesses?

MR. WOODBURY: Yes, Your Honor, with respect
-- there was an agreement between the State and the
Defense regarding AP. They had originally indicated to
me that they would be putting on AP's evidence through a
videotape of a conversation she had with Mr. Marshowsky.
I indicated that I would be calling AP. So I don't know
if they're going to put her on. If they don't, that 1is
a witness named for the State -- or for the Defense.

THE COURT: Okay. And I'm presuming we want
the rule of exclusion?

MR. SLADE: Yes.

Nevada Dictation - (775) 745-2327
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MR. WOODBURY: The I 1se does.

THE COURT: So all of you who have been named
as a witness, the rule of exclusion has been invoked,
which that means you have to have a seat outside of the
courtroom and that you cannot discuss your testimony
and/or the facts or the details of this case with
anybody except for Mr. Slade or Mr. Woodbury.

If Mr. Slade or Mr. Woodbury come out and
wish to speak with you, then you need to be out of the
hearing and/or talk quiet enough to where the other
witnesses are not able to hear the conversation. You
can have casual conversation. You can talk about
whatever you want except for the testimony and details
of the case. If, for some reason, you do get excused
prior to the case being concluded, you still are not
able to talk until the conclusion of the case. You're
not able to talk about the case until then.

And then for the record, we'll go ahead and
the Court will order that if AP [name stated, initials
inserted], if her name is brought up anywhere, that the
acronym for the transcriptionist will be AP. And for AH
[name stated, initials inserted], the -- when her name
is present in the recording, that it will be replaced
with the acronym AH, and AM [name stated, initials

inserted] will be replaced with AM. And the Court will

Nevada Dictation - (775) 745-=2327
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THE COURT: Mr. Woodbury.

MR. WOODBURY: We have no objection to
State's Exhibit No. 1 being played subject to the
qualification that, from our point of view, 1f AP is
prohibited from testifying, then we would object.

MR. SLADE: Your Honor, I can speak to that.

THE COURT: Go ahead.

MR. SLADE: The State understands that she
has been retained as a witness for the Defense and
doesn't have -- 1s not going to object to her coming and
testifying in that regard. We'wve already hashed out
that issue.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Woodbury.

MR. WOODBURY: That's fine.

THE COURT: Then State's No. 1 will be
admitted for the purpose of this hearing.

(Whereupon, Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 admittedf

MR. SLADE: Thank you, Your Honor. May the
State queue this video up?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. SLADE: Thank you.

(Whereupon, Mr. Slade and the Bailiff confer)

(Whereupon, Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 played)

THE COURT: Mr. Woodbury, are you able to

hear?

Nevada - Dictation - (775) " -2327
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MR. WOODBURY: I r 1 a slight inc in
volume.

THE COURT: Does that -help?

MR. WOODBURY: (No audible answer)

(Whereupon, Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 continued
to play)

BY MR. SLADE:

Q. Detective, I'm just going to run you through the
first couple of minutes of the interview, and then we'll
fast-forward to the part where we get to issues that are
relevant to this case. Before I do that, can you

explain just an overview of how you typically go about

doing these interviews.

A. Typically, I introduce myself. The second part is
rapport-building where we just get to know each other.
The third part would be the forensic interview. It's
through the National Children's Advocacy Center.

There's four rules. We review the rules with them. The
next step in the process is narrative practice, where we
have the child tell about a past event. Then if the --
then we typically will go into the issue that we're

investigating.

Q. And you followed those procedures in this case?

A. Yes.

Q. Are there any clues or signs or things you can look
Nevada Dictation - (775) 745-2327
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for when you're interviewing someone in this context as
far as body language?
A. Yes.

THE COURT: Mr. Slade, will you let that go
and let's see. That way when it comes to the
transcriptionist, it focuses in on you over there.

MR. SLADE: Okay.

BY MR. SLADE:

Q. And what are you typically looking for, if anything,
in the body language of a person?

A. It's just a change of behavior. That's part of the
rapport-building, narrative practice, we -- is get a
baseline behavior of how people speak and their body
language and so forth and so on. So during the
interview -- during the rapport-building, narrative

practice, AP was fairly talkative. She moved her hands.

She seemed to speak freely. Once we got to the parts of
the interview that she didn't want to talk about, her
demeanor changed. She stopped making eye contact. She
would put her hand on her head like she was hiding,
things to that nature.
Q. Okay, thank you.

MR. SLADE: I'm just going to finish playing
at about the first three minutes here just so we can

have you help us see what you're referring to as far as

Nevada Dictation - . ..) 745-2327
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the body language goes.

(Whereupon, Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 continued

to play)

BY MR. SLADE:

Q. Okay. So based on your training, how is her body
language at this point?

A. She seems fairly open. She's smiling. She's
giggling. She's making eye contact. Her hands are
moving. She appears to be comfortable.

Q. And that's something you watch for during these
interviews?

A, Yes.

MR. SLADE: I'm going to go ahead and
fast-forward to what I believe is going to be at about
18:45 into the video, which is where I understand we
start getting on topic. Let's see if this works.

(Whereupon, Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 continued
to play)

BY MR. SLADE:

Q. So the audio is a little bit low. Do you recall
what she's talking about here?

A; It is low, but she's talking about when she went
over to her friend AM's house.

Q. Okay. And approximately when did she say that

happened; if you recall?

14

Nevada Dictation - ,...) 745-2327
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A. What time she got there?
Q. What time of year.
A. It was New Year's Eve.

Q. Okay, all right.

15

(Whereupon, Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 continued
to play)
BY MR. SLADE:
Q. Now, just to make sure we're clear on where we're at
in her interview.
What is she describing right now?
A. Sitting on the couch and petting =-- and
Mr. Mentaberry is petting the dog and rubbing her
thigh --
Q. Okay.
A. -—- actually rubbing her thigh.
Q. Okay, thank you.
(Whereupon, Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 continued
to play)
BY MR. SLADE:
Q. She just said something and then covered up her
mouth. What was that, if you recall?
A. I can't hear it. I don't recall.
Q. Okay.
A. I think she said it or something or..
Q. Okay. If I back up a little bit, would that help?
Nevada Dictatiocn - (775) 745-2327
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A. Yeah.
Q. Okay. We'll give it a try. I understand this 1is
is what it is. So we'll give it our best shot here.

MR. SLADE: Your Honor, can I try one of
those sets of earphones just to see 1f 1t is or isn't.

I don't want to --

THE COURT: Mr. Marshowsky, would you like a

set?

THE WITNESS: Yeah, please. Thank you, Your

Honor.

THE COURT: And just to make sure I
understand how this works, you've got buttons on the
bottom here. Is that for volume?

THE BAILIFF: Yes.

THE COURT: Ask the Bailiff.

MR. SLADE: So start at zero if you don't
want to blow your ears and go from there?

THE BAILIFF: Absolutely.

MR. SLADE: Okay, all right. You've got =--
put yours on? Okay, let's see 1f this helps.

(Whereupon, Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 continued
to play)

BY MR. SLADE:
0. So that does sound better. What did she say about

before she touched her mouth?

Nevada Dictation - (775) 745-2327
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A. He started rubbing my stomach.
Q. Okay. You mentioned earlier about looking for any
visual clues. Did you see any here based on your

training?

A.

Q.

She covered her mouth when she said it.

Okay. So that's something significant for your --

for your training?

A.

Q.

Yes.
Okay.
MR. SLADE: All right, let's continue on.

THE WITNESS: She hadn't covered her mouth at

any other time during the interview.

MR. SLADE: Okay.

THE WITNESS: So it was a definite change in

behavior.

MR. SLADE: Okay.

(Whereupon, Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 continued
to play)
BY MR. SLADE:
Q. Okay. So she gets really quiet there again. What
is she saying?
A. He put his hands in my pants.
Q. Okay, all right.

(Whereupon, Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 continued
to play)

Nevada Dictation - (775) 745-2327

Respondent's Appendix Page 17




Respondent's Appendix Page 18



Respondent's Appendix Page 19



Respondent's Appendix Page 20



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Slade.
Mr. Woodbury, cross-examination.
MR. WOODBURY: Thank you, Your Honor.
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. WOODBURY:
Q. Detective Marshowsky, have you had the interview
that you had with AP transcribed?
A. I have not.
Q. Okay. And that would be the usual, is it wouldn't
be transcribed?
A. Yes. We normally don't transcribe them.
Q. And then ybu had an opportunity to re-listen to the

interview before court today?

A. Yes.

Q. When did you do that?

A. Two days ago.

Q. Okay. And this training and experience that you

have with respect to interviewing children, when did you

receive that training?

A. In 2016.

Q. Okay. And over what period of time did you receive
it?

A. I went to a basic interview class in 2014. It was
40 hours in Huntsville, Alabama. Later, in 2016, I went

to a 12-hour course in Salt Lake City on forensic

Nevada Dictation = (775) 745-2327
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interviewing of children. In 2017, I went to a 40-hour

symposium in Huntsville, Alabama.

Q. On what subject?
A. Forensic interviewing of children.
Q. Okay. And when the prosecution asks you various

questions about the characteristics of children during
interviews and that, you have been specifically, I
suppose, told that you can't comment on the truthfulness
of the child?

A. That's correct.

Q. So the comments you're making about that are there
certain characteristics of a child that take place when
the subject matter changes, but you're not making any
claim as to truthfulness, right?

A. That's correct.

Q. All right. And it is a typical and usual pattern,
after you conduct these interviews, that either you or
some other detective follows up on the questions and the
answers that are suggested?

A. That's correct. We're supposed to corroborate what
was said during the interview.

Q. All right. And, I guess, during the -- all the
training you've had with interviewing, there tends to be
a —-- the trainers talk to you about the words that you

are used and the meaning and how meanings change

Nevada Dictation - | 5) 745-2327
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came down and banged on the door or even knocked on it,

right?

A, I'm sorry, Mr. Woodbury, I'm not understanding.

Q. Well, is there any corroboration besides AP saying
that?

A. I just did the interview. I didn't corroborate
anything.

Q. Your investigative talents were used only for the
interview. You did not do the fbllow—up work.

A. That's correct.

Q. Oh, okay. And then was there a conversation betweer

you and the other detectives as to what kind of
follow-up needed to be done?

A. Detective Morrell watched the interview through --
during this process in the observation room. We're all
trained that we need to corroborate what was said during
the interviews for the children. So I don't
specifically recall speaking with Mr. Morrell on what
had to be done, but he knows that -- he watched the
interview and he's been trained on what he's supposed to
do.

Q. Okay.

MR. SLADE: Your Honor, could we pause for a

moment just to sort out the sound? Just don't want to

mess up the audio recording if you don't mind. ©Oh, is

Nevada Dictation = (775) 745-2327
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that -~ that's the AC. I thought it was a speaxer.

THE COURT: No.

MR. SLADE: Thank you, sorry for the
interruption.

THE COURT: Go ahead, Mr. Woodbury.

MR. SLADE: Thank you.
BY MR. WOODBURY:
Q. Okay. Another area where you talked about what she
had said, when you summed it up, you said that during
the time that the Defendant was petting his dog, he was

quote, rubbing her thigh?

A. Yes.
Q. Yeah. Well, the real word wasn't rubbing. It was
essentially that he was inadvertently -- appeared to be

inadvertently touching her thigh while he was petting

the dog?

A. Okay.

Q. Isn't that what the -- isn't that what the interview
says?

A. I don't recall, but we just listened to it, so I'm

assuming that you're correct, yes.

Q. All right. And she told you, did she not, that she
didn't think he was intentionally doing it?

A. Yeah, I believe she did say she didn't think it was

intentional.

Nevada Dictation - (775) 745-2327

Respondent's Appendix Page 25



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Q. And it appeared that he was just petting the dog?
A. Yes.

Q. And she told you, quote, weirded her out, but she
didn't think much about it?

A. I assume that's correct, yes.

Q. Okavy. Is there a particular reason why you didn't

-- you weren't involved in the follow-up detective work?
A. The case was assigned to Detective Morrell.

Q. Oh. And it just turns out that you have more

experience and more training with respect to

interviewing kids than Detective Morrell?

A. That's correct.
Q. Oh, okay. How was the interview arranged?
A. All I know 1is Detective Morrell asked when I was

available, and I told him, and he set up the interview.
I have no idea how it was arranged.

Q. Okay. And were you informed of the nature of the

interview?

A. The basic -- basic, yeah.

Q. All right. And the basics were that, essentially,
Mr. Mentaberry had sexually assaulted the child?

A. No, that the child went to a party and that she's
claiming something had happened at a party on New Year's
Eve.

Q. Okay. And are there -- is there a standard

Nevada Dictation - (775) 745-2327
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detective follow up procedure that is supposed to take

place when something like this happens?

A. Yes.
Q. All right. Well, one of the things that the child
said in the interview -- did she tell you that

Mr. Mentaberry had drunk two bottles of Vodka?

A. She told me that he was intoxicated and that he was

0. Didn't she tell you about two bottles of Vodka?
MR. SLADE: Objection, Your Honor, facts not
in evidence.
MR. WOODBURY: Well, he's got himself a

videotape there.

MR. SLADE: Your Honor, Defense counsel keeps
saying something, and apparently, with the first two
questions, knew that wasn't what the record was
reflecting. And, again, this is clearly not facts in
evidence. If it's in evidence, that's something you can
ask about, but just throwing things out there, that's
objectionable, Your Honor. The State asks that he be
required not to -- to withdraw that question.

THE COURT: Mr. Woodbury.

MR. WOODBURY: I'm asking a question about
what'she told him in this interview. If it's not in the

file, then okay, all he has to do is say it's not in the

Nevada Dictation - (775) 745-2327
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file.
MR. SLADE: Your Honor, in that case, the
objection is asked and answered.
THE COURT: It has been asked and answered.
MR. WOODBURY: Okay.

BY MR. WOODBURY:

Q. She told you he was drunk and passed out on the
couch?

A. That's correct.

Q. How did -- did you ask her how she came to know he

was passed out?
A. I don't recall.
0. Okay. Should you have asked her about that?

MR. SLADE: Your Honor, I'm going to objecf
to that being argumentative.

THE COURT: Mr. Woodbury.

MR. WOODBURY: It's not argumentative. It's
a question of whether or not he's trained and knows his
business and whether or not he‘s going to -- should be
asking those kinds of questions.

THE COURT: Mr. Slade.

MR. SLADE: Your Honor, clearly, the tenor of
the question was not as to whether or not this officer
was dbing his investigation, but rather to pose a

question, which implies something of an argument as to

Nevada Dictation - (775) 745-

Respondent's Appendix Page 28




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

what the officer should or should not have done. Your
Honor, that's an argumentative question. While the
Defense can ask about the extent of his training,
following the training, going one step further, to start
throwing in these types of questions, goes into the
realm of just being argumentative, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Sustained. Go ahead,
Mr. Woodbury.

MR. WOODBURY: It is sustained?

THE COURT: Sustained.

MR. WOODBURY: I'm sorry, Judge, I'm going to

have to ask for a continuance. I want to go to the
District Court with a writ of habeas corpus. This is
bizarre.

THE COURT: Mr. Slade.

MR. SLADE: Well, Your Honor, I'm a little
bit confused by this, but if the Defense wishes to
exercise the right to do a writ, that's up to Defense
counsel to do. It does come with a waiver of the speedy
trial right. Perhaps a break to consider this before --
a full dedication might be something that the Defense
might be given some time to consider.

THE COURT: Mr. Woodbury.

MR. WOODBURY: I didn't understand a word he

said. What I want to do is he is entitled --
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Mr. Mentaberry is entitled to a preliminary examinat 1.
He's entitled to cross-examine witnesses. He 1is not
bound by the fact that the prosecution thinks a question
is argumentative and the Court sustains it.

I cannot properly examine this witness based
on the sustained objection to that question. I need to
go to the District Court to find out so that we can have
a ruling on whether or not I can ask him hard questions
that, from my point of view, are not argumentative by
any stretch of the imagination.

THE COURT: And the speedy trial?

Mr. Mentaberry, you --

MR. WOODBURY: That would be a problem. That
creates all kinds of problems --

MR. SLADE: Your Honor --

MR. WOODBURY: ~-- but he's entitled to a fair
preliminary examination.

MR. SLADE: Your Honor, 1f I may, the State
was just getting at perhaps restating the gquestion in a
different way, not necessarily stopping
cross-examination as to whether or not the officer was
applying his training and experience in this matter. It
was the tenor that -- the way in which the question was
posed, not the content that the State was objecting to.

THE COURT: So Mr. Woodbury, are you going to
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waive the speedy trial, or are you going to --

MR. WOODBURY: I am not waiving anything. I

want to continuance on this so I can go to the District
Court and get a straightforward ruling on my ability to.
ask questions. Mr. Slade has now essentially withdrawn
his original objection, as I understand it. I want to

be able to ask him questions about what he asked her,

what she said, and whether he followed up on it, and why
he didn't, if he didn't. |

THE COURT: Okay. Then we will go ahead and
continue this out. How long do you need?

MR. WOODBURY: I don't know. The time it
takes me to write the writ and get a determination from
upstairs.

THE COURT: So this will go into District
Court II? Does it go by the case -- still everything
goes by the case in order to go up there. So we can
continue this out for -- I'm not sure, Mr. Woodbury.
Would you like to -- your office set it with the
calendering clerk?

MR. WOODBURY: We would have to do something
along that line, yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Because we have to re-subpoena

all our witnesses.

MR. SLADE: Your Honor, would it be possible
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to just take a brief recess? I'm not in any way
objecting to what Defense counsel would like to do. If
we could just get a moment to just kind of gather kind
of a game plan on that and then bring it back on the
record?

THE COURT: That will be good. We'll be back
at 10:00 o'clock.

(Whereupon, court recessed)

THE COURT: You can be seated. Court will be
back in session.

So during the break, Mr. Slade and
Mr. Woodbury did have a conversation. We did go back
into chambers and discussed a little more in detail, and
we have come to an agreement that a continuance is being
withdrawn by Mr. Woodbury.

MR. WOODBURY: That's correct.

THE COURT: Mr. Woodbury and Mr. Slade have
agreed to work things out a little bit easier, lighter
with one another. So we'll continue with guestioning.
Mr. Marshowsky, if you'll come have a seat.

All right, Mr. Woodbury, you're still on
Cross. Go ahead.

MR. WOODBURY: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MR. WOODBURY:

Q. Detective Marshowsky, do you recall this person
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telling you that the Defendant was drunk like when I got
there and he was passed out on the couch upstairs?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. All right. Did you do any follow-up with respect to

the truth or falsity of that statement?

A. That would not be my job.
Q. Okay. And there is no procedure that exists --
well, maybe that's wrong. You have conversations

between you and the lead detective on the case, right?

A. Yes.

Q. And that would be following the interview and maybe
at other times as well?

A. Yeah.

Q. Okay. And did you then discuss with the lead
detective whether or not there was a couch up there and
questions about him being passed out?

A. No.

Q. Okay. And then there came a time, did there not,
when AP told you that the entire Mentaberry family was

-—- were alcoholics?

A. That's correct.

Q. All right. And including her mother?

A. That's correct.

Q. Or excuse me, excluding Mr. Mentaberry's former

wife. Did your training and experience tell you why she
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would add that to the conve tion?

A. No.

Q. Is there anything that —-- did you all follow-up to
see if there was -- let me ask it another way. Did you

and the lead detective discuss whether or not you needed
to follow up on that after the interview with AP to see
if sﬁe was somehow angry, very angry with the entire
Mentaberry family?

A. I didn't have any discussions in any regards to
Detective Morrell about that.

Q. Okay. And there came a time, did there not, in the
interview when AP told you that she had relayed her
accusations to Mr. Mentaberry's daughter, AM, and the
accusations to AH, and that they had both claimed she
was lying about 1it?

A. I recall her saying that AM, the daughter, said she
was lying. I don't remember the other ones. I
apologize, I don't remember what she said about the
other one.

Q. And in any event, you didn't have a conversation

with the lead detective about whether or not that was

true?
A. I did not.
Q. Okay. And you were told by AP, were you not, that

she had consumed some alcohol?
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A. That's coz :.

Q. How much was that?

A. She said she had a glass of Malibu Rum and orange
juice.

Q. All right. And did -- was there any follow-up

interview questions concerning how she'd come by that
alcohol?

A. There was not.

Q. Was there any follow-up interview question
concerning whether her claim that she'd only had one
drink was -- that the other two girls down there, AM and
AH had had more to drink than that?

A. Not on my part, Mr. Woodbury. I don't know what
Detective Morrell did.

Q. Okay. And you don't recall discussing it with

Detective Morrell?

A. No.

Q. Okay. And then there was an allegation that AM's
older sister, Maizie (phonetic), was smoking marijuana?
A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. And did you do any follow-up questions on
that?

A. I did not.

0. Okay. And did you ask any questions -- or let me
ask it this way. There was an assertion by AP that
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Maizie was downstairs with them all when this all

occurred?
A. That's correct.
0. And did you ask her where Maizie was and why she

wouldn't have seen what happened?
A. I did not.
Q. To your knowledge, has there been any follow-up done

on that particular question?

A. I don't know what Detective Morrell has done on the
case.
Q. Okay. I think I may have asked this, but you didn't

-- you didn't ask where the alcohol had come from?
A. I did not ask.
Q. She, at some point then -- AP, at some point in the

interview, indicated what she was wearing, correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. And it was jeans and a t-shirt?

A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. And you asked some questions about whether or

not she could identify the jeans or show them to the
police, to law enforcement, the t-shirt?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And to your knowledge, has law enforcement

ever followed up so that everybody knows what kind of

jeans she was wearing and what kind of t-shirt?
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A. To my knowledge, no.

Q. Okay. Did she describe the couch that the people
were being occupied -- or were occupied?

A. She did.

Q. Okay. Did she also say when Mr. Mentaberry came

down and first, quote, sat on the ground?

A. Yes.

Q. And did you ask any questions about where on the
ground he sat?

A. I did not.

Q. Was any follow-up done by you or, to your knowledge,
by law enforcement regarding whether there was any
alcohol that was consistently downstairs in a container
of --

A, Mr. Woodbury, all I did was interview the suspect.

I did not do any follow-up to corroborate anything that
she had said.

Q. Okay, all right. If I understand her interview
statement and actually your testimony, AP was sitting on
the small L or small part of the L that the couch was
arranged in?

A. That's the way I understood it, vyes.

Q. And did you understand whether or not the touching
of her vagina had occurred before or after she went to

the bathroom to get her contacts out?
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N

A. I believed it was 2r. She said when she came
back.

Q. And she also said she took off her makeup?

A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. Is that -- in your training and experience,
is there anything about the -- that arrangement that

should be of concern?

A. No.

Q. Did you learn in the interview that there had been e
significant breakdown in the relationship after all of
this between AP and AM and AH?

A. Briefly. It was -- I believe that they weren't

talking anymore, vyes.

Q. Okay.

A. We didn't go into detail.

Q. All right. This is kind of a follow-up to a
previous question. She informed you that they had said
-- claimed she was -- AP was lying about that?

A. Her friends?

Q. Yes.

A. I believe so, yes.

Q. And did you follow up and ask AP whether or not

there was any delineation of why what she was saying was
a liev?

A. I didn't ask.
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and ¢ ing what -- how -- what the witness told you
stacks up against what the truth ultimately is in your

interviewing technique?

A. Well, I'1ll try to answer your question,
Mr. Woodbury. I'm hoping this answers your guestion.
I'm not sure it will. Based on our training, we're not

supposed to believe or not believe the juvenile victim
when we interview them. We're supposed to interview
them. 1It's the follow-up investigation that will

disprove or prove whether the person is telling the

truth.
Q. Okay.
A. So as a forensic interviewer, I don't want to taint

and start getting feelings whether I believe or not
believe a person. So I do my interview, and it's up for
law enforcement to corroborate or not corroborate what
was said.

Q. Okay. And so when you told the -- AP at the
beginning of the interview that you believed everything

she said, that was just part of the interview technique.

That didn't -- that wasn't a personal feeling on your
part?

A. Yes.

Q. AP, in‘the interview, at one point, I'll suggest --

maybe I'll ask it. Did AP in the interview suggest at
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A. No.

Q. Okay. Are you aware of whether or not AP told other
people that the touching had simply consisted of

Mr. Mentaberry touching her stomach?

A. I've never heard -- I am unaware.

Q. Okay. Do you recall AP telling you in the interview
that Mr. Mentaberry had a friend that was with him when
she arrived?

A. I recall, yes.

Q. All right. Did you follow up and get his name?

A. I did not.

Q. Okay. And as far as you know, did law enforcement
-- some other person in law enforcement --

A, I have no idea.

Q. Okay. I'll show you what's been marked as Defense
Exhibit A.

Are you familiar with that document?

A. Yes.
Q. What is the document?
A. This is the couch in the 1living room in
Mr. Mentaberry's residence.
Q. Okay. And how did you -- how did that document get
prepared, the drawings on it?
A. AP drew them for me.
Q. Okay. During the interview?
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A. Correct.

0. Okay. And there -- the locations of people don't
appear to be clearly marked. Did she talk about what
éhe was —-- who she was talking about when she drew
certain portions?

A. Yes, she did.

Q. And this all concerns the events of the -- New
Year's Eve and into early New Year's morning on

2017/2018, right?

A. Okay.

MR. WOODBURY: We'd like to have Defense A
admitted into evidence.

THE COURT: Any objection, Mr. Slade?

MR. SLADE: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: So Defense A -- Defense Exhibit Al
will be admitted with no objection.

(Whereupon, Defendant's Exhibit A admitted)
BY MR. WOODBURY:
Q. Can you, on that drawing, indicate what the various
configurations on there mean?
A. This is the long end of the couch. This would be

AH, and this would be AP. This is the television. This

is a window. There's a hallway going down here. This
is supposed to be a bedroom. These are the stairs l

coming down into the living room.
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Q. Okay. And when you've indicated tt tairs coming
down into the living room, it's on the top right of the
document, and it's indicated by two parallel lines,

roughly parallel lines?

A. Yes.
Q. Okay. And the figure depicting AH has a line going
out from it, and it's pointed down the couch. Is that

the direction of AH's feet as you understood it?

A. Yeah, the circle is supposed to be the heads.

Q. Okay. And to the right end of the couch on the

document, there's another circle with a line going down.
Who does that indicate?

A. That's supposed to be AP.

Q. Okay. And then next to AP, to the left of her on

the document, appears to be a zero and roughly an eight.
Do you know what that is?

A. I believe one was supposed to be the dog, and one

was supposed to be Mr. Mentaberry.

Q. All right. Do you know which one was which?
A. I do not.
Q. All right. And there's no indication on either of

those figures of the direction of the feet?

A. I'm sorry, Mr. Woodbury, can you repeat --

Q. There's no indication on either of the two figures,

the dog or Mentaberry, which direction the feet are
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facing?

A. No -- the feet of these people, or the feet of thess
people?

Q. Just those two, Mr. --

A. No. No, there's no feet.

Q. Okay. All right, thank you.

A. As far as my understanding of the.drawing. I didn't
draw it.

Q. You were present though.

Did you understand from AP that she was turned in

some direction while she was lying on the couch?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. And what direction was she --

A. She would have been laying on -- well, a side with
her -- her head facing away from the TV. I believe

that's what we talked about in the interview.
Q. All right. And did you find out -- do you recall in

the interview whether she said the TV was on or off?

A. We didn't discuss whether it was on or off.
Q. Okay. It was at a time -- did she describe for you,
as you recall, how it came to be what -- let me start

another way.
There was another girl on the couch that you've
described as AH. And -- well, you didn't. She did.

And AH was described by AP to have been asleep at some
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A. Yes.

Q. Where did he move the dog to as you understood her
‘to say?

A. I don't recall.

point?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay. And did she describe -- did AP describe how

it came to be that AH was awakened?
A. When she pulled her hand -- Mr. Mentaberry's hand

out of her pants.

Q. And did she utter a word consistent with pulling hel
hand -- his hand out of her pants?
A. I don't recall. I think she -- if memory serves me

correct, I think she said stop.

Q. Okay. And was there a -~ did AP indicate to you, or

did you ask, whether or not she had a cell phone?

A, I don't recall.

Q. Okay. And in any event, you would not recall
whether c¢r not any attempts were made by law enforcement
to get -- to come into possession of a cell phone if she
owned one?

A. I don't know. I don't believe so. I'm unaware of
one 1f one was.

Q. Okay. Did AP indicate to yocu that there came a

point in time when Mr. Mentaberry moved the dog?
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MR. SLADE: That's more than sufficient for
the State as well, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right, Detective Marshowsky,
if you can give us your phone number, please, or would
you like to write it down?

MR. MARSHOWSKY: Your Honor, I would like to
just stay if that would be all right.

THE COURT: That's fine by me. If you want
to stay, that's good. Will you hand me those earphones,
please. Thank you.

Mr. Slade, your next witness.

MR. SLADE: The State's -- oh, and before I
call the next witness, if I can, just close the screen
here on the display.

The State's next witness is Shawna Eklund.

THE COURT: Shawna Eklund.

Ms. Eklund, will you raise your right hand to
be sworn. Do you swear the testimony and information
you're going to provide to the Court today will be the
truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so
help you God?

MS. EKLUND: Yes, I do;

THE COURT: All right. Have a seat. State
your name and spell your name for the record, please.

THE WITNESS: Shawna Eklund; S-H-A-W-N-A,
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{-L-U-N-D.
THE COURT: Mr. Slade, go ahead.

MR. SLADE: Thank you.

SHAWNA EKLUND
(Sworn as a witness, testified as follows)
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. SLADE:
Q. Ms. Eklund, I'd like to draw your attention back to
the New Year of this year, December 30th, 2017,
January 1lst, 2018.

Do you have children?

A. Yes.

Q. What are their names?

A. Aaron Pederson and AP,

Q. Do you recall what AP did on that Eve, on New Year's
Eve?

A. She went to her friend's. I took her to her friend,

AM's, 1in the evening.

Q. And just for purposes of identification, is AP also

a witness in this case?

A. Yes.
Q. How old was she on New Year's Eve?
A. Fourteen.

MR. SLADE: Your Honor, I have no further

questions for the witness at this time.
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THE COURT: Thank you. Mr. Woodbury, do you
have any questions on the cross-exam?

MR. WOODBURY: Thank you, Your Honor.

CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. WOODBURY:
Q. Ms. Eklund, you were the person who took AP to a
residence on New Year's night -- evening?
A. Yes.
Q. Do you know what time that was?
A. I don't remember, probably 7:00 maybe, 6:00 or 7:00
I'm not -- I can't remember the time.
Q. Okay. Do you remember where it was that you took
her?
A. I can -- I know where it is, but I can't give you
the street address.
Q. And did she have to direct you where to take her, or
did you already know?
A. She did. She got the address from AM and directed
me.
Q. I'm sorry, I didn't understand.
A. I'm sorry, she got the address from AM, and she
directed me.
Q. And did she do that -- get the address via cell
phone?
A. Yes.
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she left your car that night?

ride to AM's house?

A. No.

Q. And your understanding that -- was
stay there all night?

A. Yes.

MR. SLADE: Nothing on that,

held, or can she be excused?

MR. WOODBURY: I would like

your testimony about the case.
MS. EKLUND: Okay.

THE COURT: And you're good

Q. Okay. And did she have the cell phone with her when

A. Yes.

Q. Do you recall how she was dressed?

A. No.

Q. Was there anything unusual about her behavior on the

she was going to

MR. WOODBURY: I have nothing further.

THE COURT: Mr. Slade, any redirect?

Your Honor.

THE COURT: Would you like Ms. Eklund to be

her retained.

THE COURT: Okay. You're being retained. So

you still have to wait outside, and you can't discuss

to go.

Mr. Slade, your next witness.
MR. SLADE: The State's next witness is AH.

THE COURT: Right up here, please. Will you
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okay, I'm sorry. It was one of AM's sister's friends
was there as well, and yeah.
Q. Okay. And that was -- I realize we're asking you tol

go back a ways.

A. Uh-huh.
Q. And parties we usually don't have our clocks on us,
but do you remember roughly what type of -- what part of

the evening you were at at that point or day?
A. It was about 5:00 o'clock when I showed up at theirl
house, p.m.

Q. Okay. And how did the evening progress?

A. Well, so I went downstairs -- well, I like got -- I
went into the house, and then I just went downstairs,
and I said hello to everybody. And then they were like
do you want to take a shot, and I was -- of alcohol, and
I just ~-- I was like sure, why not. So I did, and then
the evening just started going with more and more

drinking and more and more just hanging out with

friends.
Q. Okay. You mentioned some particular friends being
there. Did those friends change, who was there or not,

at any point in the evening?

A. Yes. Angela and her little sister left, I want to

say around 8:00, but that's not very -- I'm not very

sure about that. And I think my friend Josh left around
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Q. What's down there?

A. There's a couch, a TV. There's a -- there's like a
foosball table, I think it's called. I'm not very sure.
There's just like a little bar to like get some like

soda or pop or anything, and then there is a laundry

room, a bathroom, and then my friend AM's room and
Maizie's room, my friend's older sister.
Q. Couches come in different shapes. How would you
describe the shape of this couch?
A. It was like an L kind of shaped couch. Like there
was a -- it was just an L, yeah.
Q. Okay. So that's where you were at when midnight
came?
A. Uh-huh.
Q. Who was with you at that point?
A. I was with AM and AP just sitting in the living area
when they -- well, I was asleep, but then they woke me
up to be like Happy New Year's and all that stuff, so.
Q. All right. And what happened after that?
A. Well, Kevin came downstairs, I think, Jjust because
he was kind of -- like I would be bored if I was Jjust
sitting upstairs too. I think he was just coming
downstairs to be like Happy New Year's too and then like
Q. I got to ask you another dumb question.
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A. Oh, I'm sorry.
Q. Who i1s Kevin?
A, AM's dad.
1
Q. Do you see him in court today?
A, Yes, I do.
Q. Will you identify for the Court an item of clothing

he's wearing and where he is seated.
A, A red shirt and like on the left side of the room.
MR. SLADE: May the record reflect the
witness has identified the Defendant.
THE COURT: The record will so show.

BY MR. SLADE:

Q. I interrupted you.

A. Oh, that's okay.

0. You said he came down?

A. Yeah, he just came down to be like Happy New Year's

too, and then he just sat on the couch, and then I fell

back asleep around like -- I think it was 12:30 or 1:00.

Q. Okay. What were you guys doing down there before
you fell asleep?
A. We were watching TV, and we were just talking.
Q. Okay.

MR. SLADE: Your Honor, if I may have
Defense's Exhibit A.

BY MR. SLADE:
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Q. AH, I'm showing you an exhibit that v tered int«
evidence --

A. Uh-huh.

Q. -- earlier. And I just need you to bear with me
here. You mentioned the couch was L-shaped?

A. Yeah, like this.

Q. So 1s that similar to the L pattern we =« in the
middle of this exhibit?

A. Yeah.

Q. Okay. You mentioned you were sleeping?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. Was that on the couch?

A. Yeah, I was right here, like I was on the edge of
the couch.

Q. Okay. So if I'm facing the paper, you're saying

your head was on the far left side of the L?

A. Yes.
Q. And which way were your legs going?
A. The right side, like pointed towards like the curve

or the edge of the couch.

Q. So they were staying on the couch --
A. Uh-huh.
Q. -—- probably down towards -- okay.

You mentioned that the Defendant was there.

A. Uh-huh.
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your recollection and looking at this L shape, which
represents the couch --
A. Uh-huh.
Q. -- approximately where would the coffee table have
been?
A. Like right ~-- 1like right -- right where the edge 1is
kind of, but 1like spaced out. So like you can put your
feet on it kind of.
Q. Okay. So I'm not going to mark the exhibit, but I'r
just going to use a pen to point to where you're
referring to. Are you referring to out in this
direction?
A. Yeah, kind of. Like it was like -- like a
rectangle.
Q. It was a rectangle --
A. Yeah.
Q. ~-—- coffee table?
A, Yeah.
Q. Okay. So it would have been kind of coming down
this way --
A, Yeah.
Q. -- and out this way?
A. Yeah.
Q. Okay. So what I'm doing -- I'll describe it, as I'm
putting -- roughly outlining without marking the
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exhibit, a rectangle that runs parallel to the part of

the L that you were laying on.

A. Uh-huh.

Q. Okay, all right. I'll leave that there.

A. Okay.

Q. So the three of you were there.

A. Uh-huh.

Q. Do you recall if anyone else was?

A. AM was there for just a little bit to be like Happy

New Year's, but she left to go to bed, I think. Yeah,
like a couple minutes later, she was like all right,
guys, I'm going to go to sleep. Do you guys want to
come with me? And then AP was like I think I might just

stay out here and watch TV.

Q. Okay.
A, But that was before Kevin came downstairs, I think.
Q. So at the point that we're describing, that you

described on the map or on this diagram, AM was where?

A. In her room.

Q. In her room?

A, I think she was asleep.

Q. Okay. What happened at that point?

A. We were Jjust watching TV. I was asleep, and then I
just woke up, and I saw like AP -- because there was

like a guy she didn't know like kind of sleeping next to
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A. Yeah.
Q. Okay. And her older sister is who?
A. Maizie Mentaberry.
Q. Okay. And Maizie had a friend there?
A. Yeah.
Q. And who -- what's the friend's name, or do you know?
A. It was -- I know her first name, Cassidy, but I
don't know her last name.
Q. Okay. And there was a -- came a time when Maizie
was smoking marijuana?
A. Yes, she was.
Q. All right. Do you remember when that was?
A. I don't. I'm sorry.
Q. Do you remember how long Maizie stayed there?
A. I think she was there the whole night, but I -- I
don't remember her leaving, but I wasn't very much
paying attention to that.
Q. Okay. And her room, Maizie's room, is down the hall
and across from AM's room?
A. Yeah, it's just across the hallway from AM's room.
Q. Yeah, okay. And did the friend stay, or do you
know?
A. I don't know. I'm sorry.
Q. Okay. And the room, AM's room, has a bed in it?
A. Yes.
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Q. And is it a little bed or a big bed or what?

A. It's like an average size bed, like just a queen
size bed.

Q. Okay. And how did -- you had intended to stay the
whole night and actually did, right?

A. Yes.

Q. And how did it come up that AP got invited to stay
the whole night?

A, Well, she was going to go hang out with her other
friend. I'm not quite sure who it was, but her friend
cancelled and said she couldn't. So AP was texting us
being like can I come over to your guy's -- to this

house instead.

Q. Okay. I'm going to have to repeat that to make sure

I got that. It wasn't that you or AM called her or
texted her to come over, it was she requested to be

allowed to come over?

A. Yes.

Q. She had not been originally invited?

A. Yes.

Q. All right. Is there some reason for that?

A. No. It's just -- well -- well, actually, we did

invite her, like do you want to come over to the house
for New Year's, and then she said, oh, I already have

other plans to go with someone else.
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people that had to go, like Angela and her little

sister, I don't think they had any. And my friend Josh,

I don't think he drinks at all.

Q. And AP, did she have any alcohol?
A. I think she did, yes.
Q. Okay. And what -- what facts do you have that says

that she did?

A. I ~- I think I like -- I can't really remember.

Like I see her like holding a bottle, but then I like
don't remember anything else after that.

Q. Were you drinking out of the bottle?

A, I think I did once, but the other times, it was just
out of glasses.

Q. And this alcohol, how did it get there?

A. It was just there. Like I just -- I think that they

might have like snuck a bottle downstairs, but I'm not

very sure about that.

Q. Okay. You've known Mr. Mentaberry for quite a
while?

A. Well, I've known his daughter for -- I met her in
like eighth grade. So that was like two years ago -- no
-- yeah, it was like two -- one and a half years ago, I
guess. And -- yeah, I kind of just went over to her

house so I knew him for --

Q. Okay. You knew him as her father?
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A. Yes, I think she bt =~ a cc¢ 2.
Q. Did she appear to be intoxicated?
A. I think she was like kind of like just feeling --

feeling it a little bit, but I don't think she was like
gone all the way.

Q. Okay. Now, if I recall correctly, you said that the
party mostly consisted of playing board games, watching

television, and that kind of thing?

A. Well, it wasn't like a board game. It was kind of
like a card game. It was Cards Against Humanity, and
like that's kind of just -- it's pretty much just a

board game.
Q. Okay. Is that a game that several people can

participate in or --

A. Yes, a lot of people can play it.

Q. Okay. And how long do you think that went on?

A. Maybe like an hour, an hour and a half, I think.

Q. Okay. And what time do you think it ended?

A. I don't remember that.

Q. Do you have any notion of what time Mr. Mentaberry's

friend upstairs left?

A. I don't remember. I just remember him being there
one time, and then -- then he was just gone.
Q. Do you recall a time when you saw Mr. Mentaberry

passed out upstairs?

Nevada Dictation - (775) 745-2327

Respondent's Appendix Page 76



Respondent's Appendix Page 77



Respondent's Appendix Page 78



Respondent's Appendix Page 79



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

80

Q. All right. And since I wasn't standing up there,
I'm not a hundred percent sure what you were saying.

A. I'm sorry. So she was like curled up kind of in the
corner of the L couch.

Q. Okay. About where this circle with the line going

from it is showing there?

A. Yes.
Q. Okay. And was she sitting up?
A. Yeah, I think her back was like -- she was kind of

leaning on the couch, like the pillow part of the couch.

Q. Okay. And was Mr. Mentaberry down there at that
time?
A. I think that's when he came down after -- well,

during like the Happy New Year's.

Q. It was after the Happy New Year?

A. Yeah.

Q. All right. Did he bring alcohol down with him?

A. I don't remember that. If he did, I wouldn't be
able to --

Q. You don't know if he had anything more to drink

after that or not?

A. I don't. I'm sorry.

Q. All right. Did there come a time when
Mr. Mentaberry sat on the floor?

A. I think so. I'm not -- I can't remember that, but I
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think he like fell once, and that's the one thing I

remember of him being on the floor.

Q. He fell to the floor?

A. I think so. Like he tripped over something, and

then he kind of just sat on the floor for a couple of

seconds. But I don't remember if that's what you're

talking about.

Q. And was there a time there was some bottles of

alcohol laying on the coffee table?

A. Yeah, I think it was the Malibu that AP brought.

Q. Okay. And Mr. Mentaberry took that alcohol and took

it upstairs-»

A. I think so.

Q. Okay. All right. There came a time after the Happy

New Year event when you woke up. You went back to sleep

and then you woke up again, right?

A. Uh-huh, yes.

Q. When was that?

A. I would say like 2:30, 3:00, 3:30, I'm not very sure

about that. I Jjust remember it was late at night, early

in the morning.

Q. All right. How -- what's your memory of that based

on?

A. I don't really have a memory of that. That's just

what I think -- that's just the time that I think I woke
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up at.
Q. Okay. The truth is that you don't know when you

woke up?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And it was still nighttime is what you reall:
remember, right?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. I assume by that time, that you had -- some
of the effects of the alcohol had worn off?

A. My vision was still kind of like (indicating), and
like I was half asleep, half awake kind of, so.

Q. And that had to do with alcohol or just waking up

from sleeping?

A. I think it was a little of both.

Q. Okay. All right. You don't know what woke you up?
A. I think -- I'm pretty sure it was because the dog
was moving, and she was next -- she was like laying

against me, so.
Q. All right. And by laying against you, you were
still in the same configuration as depicted on that

exhibit?

A. Yes.

Q. And he was -- how was he laying against you?

A. The dog was -- I don't -- well, my legs were kind of
-- I don't know how to describe the position. Like T
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was kind of like in a fetal position, I guess you could

say.

Q. Your legs were curled up --—

A. Yeah.

Q. -- they weren't straight out, right?

A. Yeah. And the dog was curled up like in between my
legs.

Q. And the dog had been there the whole time as far as

you know?

A. I think so. As far as I know, yeah.

Q. He hadn't been in a different position earlier?

A. The dog?

Q. Yeah.

A. Yeah, well, the dog was like curled up, and then she
started like turn -- like she sat up and turned her

position, I think, and that's what woke me up.

Q. Okay. Was the television on or off when you woke
up?

A. It was on.

Q. Okay. Was it loud?

A. It was kind of just like faint music playing. So it

wasn't very loud.
Q. Had you heard any conversation between the time you
went to sleep after the New Year -- Happy New Year

event, and then when you woke up again, did you hear any
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A. I don't remember the kind of pants she was wearing.
Q. Do you remember the shirt she was wearing?
A. No, I don't.
Q. Okay. But you didn't notice anything out of --
A. No.
Q. Okay. I guess I better finish that sentence. You
didn't notice any --
A. I didn't --
Q. Wait a minute.
A. Oh, sorry.
Q. You didn't notice that her pants were twisted or
turned or her shirt was twisted or turned or out of the
ordinary?
A. No, I didn't notice anything like that.
Q. And you had indicated in the statement, had you not,
that she was kind of -- looked funny while she was
looking at her phone, somehow out of the ordinary. That
was -- |
A. I think it was just because like there was a man she
didn't know like sleeping next to her.
Q. Okay. Well, what would cause you to know such a
thing?
A. Nothing really, just like a feeling.
Q. As far as you know, she did not know Mr. Mentaberry?
A. Yes.
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Q. Do you know what she was doing in there?

A. No, I don't.

Q. Okay. Was she sleeping?

A. I'm not sure.

Q. Okay. And Maizie's friend, did you see the friend

there during the New Year's celebration?

A. No.

Q. Okay. When you woke up after the New Year
celebration and you saw AP with her cell phone, looking
at her cell phone, tell me what happened exactly then.
A. I just asked Kevin if he wanted to go upstairs, and

he grabbed Raven, and they both went upstairs, and then

Q. When you say "grabbed Raven," did he pack him?

A. Oh, no, he was just like come on Raven, and then
they went upstairs.

Q. Okay. And the locking the gate, you locking the
gate had to do with making sure Raven didn't come back

downstairs, right?

A. Yes.
Q. Is there any doubt in your mind?
A. No, I just didn't want Raven to like -- I thought

that he'd want her upstairs, so.

Q. Okay. Did you have to ask Mr. Mentaberry more than

one time, make demands of him, to get upstairs?
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A. No, I don't -- I just asked him once, and he went
up .
Q. All right. You didn't even ask him, you simply

suggested it?
A. I kind of was like, hey, do you want to go upstairs,
and then he had some struggle getting up because he was

intoxicated.

Q. He was still intoxicated?
A. I believe he was.
Q. Okay. And did you -- you followed him up the stairs

for the purpose of closing the gate, right?

A. Yes.

Q. There wasn't any other reason for that?

A. No.

Q. Okay. Did you engage in any other conversation with

Mr. Mentaberry at that time?

A. No.
Q. Okay. Then you came back downstairs?
A. Yes.

Q. And what happened?

A. Then AP was just sitting up, and I was like are you
good? And then she just -- she just said he touched my
stomach and then --

Q. And I take it that the phrase or the question are

you good is --
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a sad expression on her face. And then that's really
it.
Q. Did you have some reason to believe that more had

been involved than that?

A. No.

Q. Is the nature of the relationship between you and AP
such that she wouldn't tell you if there was more?

A. Well, we weren't very close as friends so I don't
know if she would tell me that.

Q. Why would she keep it from you?

A. Well, I don't really see why she would have -- like
if that would have happened, I think she would have told
me at that moment.

Q. Okay. So after this conversation with her, what did
you guys do?

A. I suggested -- well, I asked her, I was like do you
want to go to sleep in AM's room, and she was like yeah.
So we went and slept in there.

Q. You had been previously both invited to go to sleep

in AM's room, right?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. So you went to AM's room?
A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Was AM awake?

A. No, she was asleep.
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Mr. Mentaberry having touched somebody?
A. No.
Q. Was AM -- did AM wake up when you and AP went in

that room?

A. Yes, I think to open up the door.

Q. Huh?

A. Yeah, she like woke up to open up the door.

Q. The door had been previously locked?

A, I don't remember that. I just know that I knocked

so she would --
Q. Did you tell AM that her -- that AP was accusing her

father of touching her stomach?

A, No, I --

Q. There was no conversation about that?

A. No, I just went to sleep.

0. How come there was no conversation about that?
A. I don't know, I thought it'd be a conversation

between AP and AM. Like I feel like that wouldn't be

something for me to share.

Q. And then did Mr. Mentaberry come back downstairs?

A. I don't remember any of that.

Q. You don't remember that?

A. Yeah, I don't think he did anyway.

Q. Well, if AP said he came down and was banging on the

locked door, do you recall hearing that?
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A. I don't remember t ring that.

Q. Were you in a position where you would have heard it

had it been happening?

A. I don't -- I was kind of like asleep on the like

farthest wall from the door.

Q. I'm not talking about just tapping on the door. I'm

talking about, quote, banging on the door.

A. Oh, I don't recall any of that.

Q. I know you don't recall it, but you were in a

position to hear if it had been happening?

A. I think so, yes.

Q. Okay. So what time did you get up the following

morning?

A. I don't remember that, what time I got up.

Q. How did you get home?

A. My mom came and picked me up.

Q. Really? Are you sure?

A. Yes, I -- yes.

Q. Mr. Mentaberry didn't haul you home?

A. No, he took AP home, I think, but my mom --

Q. How do you know that?

A. I don't know. That's just how I assumed she got

home.

Q. Okay. And -- okay. And then you heard at a

subsequent time -- AP told you that the stomach touching
1 ton = | 3)
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correctly, you're up to about two and a half years now?

A. It was like one and a half years, like almost three
years.
Q. Okay. And AP, you've just kind of known her as like

you knew who she was, but you hadn't hung out with her
very much?

A. Yes.

0. Okay. Since this occurred, how is your friendship
or your relationship with AM?

A. Just how it usually is, just hanging out and like

just being friends and stuff.

Q. Have you been over to her home since this occurred?
A. Yes, I have.

Q. And this is the same one we're describing?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. What kind of things have you gone back over
for?

A. Just to hang out with friends and like just to --

you know, whenever we're bored, we'll be like hey, do
you guys all want to get together and hang out, and then
we just go over.

Q. Okay. And been invited to any events or parties or
anything like that since then?

A. No, I haven't.

Q. And how many times have you spent time with, hung
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out with AP since then?

A. Not -- we haven't at all since then.
Q. Okay. And just to make sure I understood your
testimony today. It was after you told Kevin to go

upstairs that you saw AP crying, you described as not
sobbing, but that she looked tearful?

A. Well, it was like she was kind of just sitting, and
then when I sat next to her and I was like are you okay,
she was like he touched my stomach, and then she was
like tearful.

Q. Okay. And that was after you told him to go
upstairs?

A. Yes.

Q. And 1f I understood the sequence correctly, you
mentioned you closed the gate, you came back downstairs,

and you talked about deciding to go sleep in AM's room?

A. Yes.
Q. And that was a discussion you and AP had?
A. No, 1t wasn't really a discussion. It was more like

let's go to sleep in AM's room, and then we were just
like okay.
Q. Okay. And after you went into AM's room, the door

was locked?

A. Yes, I think -- I believe it was, yeah.
Q. And your memory today, as far as where you were
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sl >ing in the room, was that you we on the wall
furthest away from the door?

A. Yes.

Q. You were asked on cross-examination if you had
reason to believe that the touching by the Defendant was
deliberate, and I believe your answer was no?

A. Yes.

Q. If I understand correctly, you did see that AP was

uncomfortable, right?

A. Yes.

Q. And she did appear tearful and upset?

A. I would say more just like -- I don't really know
how to like explain her like emotion. Like it was kind
of just blank. Like it was like she was tearful, but

that's all I really remember.
Q. Okay.

MR. SLADE: Your ﬁonor, I have no further
questions for the witness at this time.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Slade.

Mr. Woodbury, do you have any recross?

MR. WOODBURY: I do not.

THE COURT: May this witness be -- would you
like her retained, or can she be excused?

MR. WOODBURY: I'd like her retained, please.

THE COURT: All right. So you're being
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MR. MORRELL: I do.

THE COURT: Have a seat. State your name and

spell your full name for the record, please.

THE WITNESS: Joshua Morrell; J-0-S-H-U-A,
M-O0O-R-R-E-L-L.

THE COURT: Mr. Slade, go ahead.

MR. SLADE: Thank you.

JOSHUA MORRELL
(Sworn as a witness, testified as follows)
DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. SLADE:

Q. Mr. Morrell, what is your title?

A. Detective Corporal Morrell.

Q. All right. So do you go by corporal, detective, or
both?

A. Either one is fine, sir.

Q. Either one, okay. Corporal, I'd like to draw your

attention to the 30th of June -- excuse me, the 30th of

January of this year. Do you recall what you were doing

relevant to this case?

A. I believe I was watching an interview, a forensic
interview of -- I don't know if we're using t 111
name or the acronyms.

Q. Either/or, the transcriptionist will --

A. -- of AP.
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Q. What v the purpc of that?
A. He's a suspect in this matter.
Q. What was the result?

MR. WOODBURY: I'm going to object to that,
Your Honor. He has a right to remain silent, and this
is improper.

THE COURT: Mr. Slade.

MR. SLADE: Permission tp respond, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. SLADE: Your Honor, I'd ask the objection
be overruled. 1In court proceedings, a Defendant's right

to remain silent cannot be commented on by the State in
any way, shape, or form. However, the Fifth Amendment
right to remain silent does not mean that it's a right
to not have that fact brought into evidence. That's the
State's understanding of the law, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Woodbury.

MR. WOODBURY: I have nothing further.

THE COURT: Your objection again?

MR. WOODBURY: My objection is he has a Fifth
Amendment right to remain silent, and the State can't
comment on it or bring it into evidence, that he didn't
remain -- that he did exercise that right.

THE COURT: Sustained. Go ahead, Mr. Slade.
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MR. SLADE: I have no further questions for
the witness at this time.

THE COURT: Mr. Woodbury.

MR. WOODBURY: Nothing.

THE COURT: Would you like Detective Morrell
retained, or he can be excused?

MR. SLADE: He can be excused for the State,
Your Honor.

MR. WOODBURY: I'd like him retained.

THE COURT: You can have a seat outside,
Mr. Morrell.

MR. MORRELL: You're killing me.

MR. WOODBURY: Just to punish him, Your
Honor.

MR. MORRELL: Yeah, I believe you too.

THE COURT: Mr. Slade, your next witness.

MR. SLADE: Just a moment, Your Honor. The
State has no further witnesses to call in its
case-in-chief, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Slade. So you're
resting?

MR. SLADE: Yes.

THE COURT: Mr. Woodbury.

MR. WOODBURY: Yes, Your Honor, we'd like to

call AP, please.
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THE COURT: AP.

Come up here, please. Please raise your
right hand. No, you have to face me.
AP: Okay.

THE COURT: You have to step back here and
face me.

AP: Okay.

THE COURT: Do you swear the testimony you're
going to provide to the Court today will be the truth,
the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you
God?

AP: Yes.

THE COURT: All right. Have a seat, and I
need you to state your name and spell your name for the
record, please.

THE WITNESS: AP [name stated and spelled,
initials inserted].

THE COURT: Mr. Woodbury, go ahead.

MR. WOODBURY: Thank you, Your Honor. I
wonder if the Court could advise her to speak up a
little bit so I can hear her.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: So you have to speak up just a

little bit. Mr. Woodbury's hearing has faded a little
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bit.
Go ahead, Mr. Woodbury.
AP
(Sworn as a witness, testified as follows)
DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. WOODBURY:

Q. AP, what is your date of birth?
A. February 24th, 2003.
Q. Okay. And did you do anything in order to be

prepared to testify here today?
A. Yeah. Yesterday I watched my -- just watched my

interview, video.

Q. Okay. And did you read any statements?

A. Just mine.

Q. Okay. And what statement was that, the one you
wrote?

A. Yeah.

Q. Okay. And did you see anything either in the

statement that you wrote or in the interview of you by
Detective Marshowsky that you stated but that you would

now like to change?

A. No.
Q. Okay. Drawing your attention now to December 31lst,
2017, at approximately -- well, in the evening, did you

have an opportunity or did you have an occasion to go to
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the house of AM?

A. Yeah.
Q. And where was that located at?
A. It was by Mountain View, but I'm not sure what the

address 1is.

Q. Okay. About what time did you go there?

A. Maybe 10:00, like --

Q. Maybe 10:00°%?

A. Yeah, I'm not exactly sure.

Q. And do you realize that on a prior occasion in the
interview with Detective Marshowsky, you'd indicated it
was around 9:00 o'clock?

MR. SLADE: Your Honor, I'm going to have to
object to leading.

THE COURT: Mr. Woodbury.

MR. WOODBURY: We'd ask you to declare her a
hostile witness, Your Honor, where I represent the
Defendant, and she is the alleged victim.

MR. SLADE: Your Honor, I --

THE COURT: The objection was leading.
You're saying a hostile witness.

MR. WOODBURY: And I'm saying, I guess, that
under the statute, if I have a hostile witness, I'm
allowed to ask leading questions.

MR. SLADE: If I can elaborate, Your Honor,

I
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The State's objection is based on 3, subsection (a),
leading questions may not be used on direct examination
of a witness.

If I understand Mr. Woodbury correctly, he's
referring to subsection 4(b), a witness identified with
an adverse party is a situation in which the person who
called them can interrogate by leading questions. So
the State's response would be that there needs to be
foundation laid if that's what the Defense is going to
say is its basis for switching to leading questions on a
direct exam.

THE COURT: Mr. Woodbury.

MR. WOODBURY: I've laid the foundation. I
represent the Defendant, and she is the alleged victim.

THE COURT: Go ahead, overruled.

BY MR. WOODBURY:

Q. Do you recall telling Detective Marshowsky that you
got to the house at 9:00 o'clock?

A. Yeah.

Q. Do you have an actual memory of when you did get to
the house?

A, Yeah, but I thought -- I didn't really -- I wasn't
really sure what time so I just guessed maybe 9:00.

0. Okay. When you got to the house, who was there?
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Q. And when was that?

A, This past semester.

Q. Past semester?

A. Like the semester like...

Q. Okay. That would be in the fall of 20177

A. No, the -- like January to June.

Q. I'm sorry, January to June of what year?

A. 2018.

Q. So you're not presently enrolled in high school?
A. I am now. I'm going back to high school like -- I'm
not doing on-line anymore.

Q. Okay. I'm confused. Please tell me when you did
on-line school?

A. The second semester, from January to June until
school was out.

Q. Okay. Do you know whether or not AM has a sister?
A. Yes.

Q. And who is that sister?

A. Her name's Maizie.

Q. Okay. And was she present on the evening of Januar:
-—— or --

A. Yes.

Q. -- December 31st?

A. Yes.

Q. Was she present throughout the evening?
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Yes, she was in her room.

I'm sorry?

She was in her room.

Okay. Did her room have a door on it; do you know?
I don't think it did.

Okay. And did she have a friend there as well?
Yes, but I don't know her name.

Okay. Was the friend there throughout the period

Yes, she stayed the night.

How long did you stay overnight -- or how long did

you stay after you got there?

A.

Well, I stayed overnight, and then I left early in

the morning.

Q.
A.
Q.
A.

Q.

What time did you leave in the morning?
I'm not sure.

How did you go?

Kevin took me home.

Okay. This person to my immediate right, you are,

at least, aware of?

A.

Q.

(No audible answer)
Yes?
Yes.
Who is that person?

Kevin Mentaberry.
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Q. Okay. When did you first come to know

Mr. Mentaberry?

A. That was the first time I ever met him.

Q. What was?

A. When I went to his house on New Year's Eve.

Q. And when did you first talk to him?

A. When he woke up and came downstairs.

Q. And do you know when that was?

A. Probably after midnight.

Q. Ckay. Do you have any events that you're basing
that onv?

A. Well, me and my friend, AH, we were watching Pretty
Little Liars on the TV. So he came down there while we

were watching that.

Q. Okay. And had you been previously asleep?
A. No.
Q. Okay. And was there a -- an event when the time

changed from midnight to 20187 Did something happen

down there?

A. No.

Q. There was no celebration --

A. Well, yeah.

Q. -- or no saying Happy New Year or stuff like that?
A. Yeah.

Q. Can you tell -- describe for the Court what that
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was?

A, I did drink alcohol.

0. Excuse me?

A. I did drink some alcohol.

0. Okay. I'm not asking about that. I'm asking about
the -- when the time changed from 2017 to 2018, did

anything extraordinary happen downstairs?

A. No.
Q. Nobody said Happy New Year or --
A. No.

Q. Really?

A. Yeah.

Q. Okay. Who all was downstairs when the time -- when
it went over -~ the time changed?

A. Maizie and her friend were in her room, and AM was

in her room, and me and AH were on the couch, and he --
Kevin came downstairs.
Q. Okay. And did you happen to see any friends that

Mr. Mentaberry had with him that evening?

A, Yeah.

Q. Do you know who that was?

A. I don't know his name.

Q. All right. When did you see him?

A, He was downstairs. There's a little bar area

downstairs, and he was sitting at the bar by himself.
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Q.

A.

there for a while, and then he left later.

Q.

there, you were on the couch?

And when -- was that before or after the New r?
Before.
Okay. How long did he stay down there?

A while. I'm not sure exactly how long, but he was

Okay. And during the whole time that he was down

A. No, I was in Maizie's room.

Q. Was Maizie -- are you familiar with marijuana?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you see any marijuana being used that night?
A. Yes.

Q. Who did you see using it?

A. Maizie and all of us did.

Q. All of you did?

A. Yes.

Q. And how much did you ingest?

A. Only -- it wasn't that much.

Q. All right. Okay, I'm not sure how much is not that
much.

A. I don't know how to like measure it, like a bowl
maybe.

Q. And when did you use that?

A. Right -- kind of right when I gotithere, like 9:00

or whatever, whenever I got there.
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Q. And do the effects of marijuana -- what was the

effect of the marijuana on you?

A. It just calms me down, but it wore off pretty fast.

Q. And how fast is pretty fast?

A. Well, it wore -- wear -- wored off before 12:00, so

Q. Did you bring any alcohol with you to the --

A. No.

Q. ~— to the home?

A. From home?

Q. Well, did you bring any alcohol --

A. Yes.

Q. -—- with you to the Mentaberry residence?

A. Yes.

Q. What did you bring?

A. Malibu.

Q. All right. Where did you get that?

A. From my house.

Q. How did you get it in the house, in the Mentaberry

house?

A. I just -- it was in my bag, and I just took it in.

Q. Okay. So you brought a bag with you?

A. Yeah.

Q. And how -- what else did you bring with you?

A. Just like pajamas and my toothbrush and stuff like
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Q.

A.

contact case.

Q.

A.

Q.

A.

you,

recording system.

BY MR. WOODBURY:

Q. And how much of the Malibu did you drink?

A. We drank orange juice with it, so there was probably
a shot in the glass of orange juice. So it wasn't a

lot.

Q. All right. Did you drink any other alcohol that
night?

A. No.

Q. Okay. You saw AH there. Did she drink some

alcohol?

A.

Q.

You're going to have to sy k up. I can't hear you.

Just like pajamas and like a toothbrush and my

You brought pajamas?
Yes.
Okavy.
No. No, I didn't.
THE COURT: Mr. Woodbury, those ears may help
assist you in this.
MR. WOODBURY: Oh, all right.

THE COURT: Because they come through the

MR. WOODBURY: Okay.

I think she did.

Okay. Did she drink more than you did --
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of re n or ==

A. Yeah, I can't remember. It was a long time ago, so.
Q. And now you're not friends with AM any longer?

A. No.

Q. And you're not friends with AH any longer?

A. I don't really know. Like we're not friends, but
like we're like -- I don't like hate her or anything.
Q. I'm sorry?

A. I don't like hate her or anything like...

Q. Okay. Did Mr. Mentaberry confiscate the Malibu Rum
from you?

A. No.

Q. Okay.

A. Actually, he did later and then drank it.

Q. He took it and drank it?

A. Yeah.

Q. And when was that?

A. After midnight.

Q. Okay. How did you come to go to the Mentaberry
house?

A. My mom took me.

Q. Okay. But did you get invited, or did you ask --
A. Yeah, AM texted me and said she wanted me to come
over.

Q. Had you made previous arrangements that had fallen
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What's that?

A. That's where AH was.

Q. That's where AH was?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And where were you?

A. Right here.

Q. Okay. And is the television depicted in that?

A. Yeah, it was right here.

Q. Okay. And then there's a zero and what looks kind

of like an eight, and what's that?

A. Well, I drew the -- I'm not a very good drawer. But

I -- Kevin was right here, and then the dog was right
here at first.
Q. Okay.
THE COURT: Show me one more time.
BY MR. WOODBURY:
Q. This is Kevin first and the dog?
A. (Nods)
THE COURT: You have to say vyes.
THE WITNESS: Yes.
THE COURT: Okay, thank you.

BY MR. WOODBURY:

Q. And that was at first?
A. Yeah, yes.
Q. Okay. And you're depicted here. Were you sitting
|
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up, or were you laying down?
A. I was laying down.
Q. Okay. And this is -- when you say "at first," when

is that? When is at first?

A, Well, when he sat on the couch, that was -- that's
what -- yeah, sorry.

Q. Do you remember what you were wearing?

A. Just a t-shirt and jeans.

Q. Okay. And can you describe the jeans a little

further?

A. I think they were just ripped like skinny jeans.
Q. Like a button-up jean?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. And the t-shirt?

A. I can't remember what the t-shirt was.

Q. Did law enforcement ever ask you to -- for the

t-shirt and the jeans?

A. For them to take it?

Q. Yeah.

A. No.

Q. Okay. And did you have any photographs of yourself

that night so that you could identify your shirt and
your Jjeans?

A. Yes.

Q. And are those photographs still available?
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Q.

A.

Yes. I think it's just of my shirt.
I'm sorry?

I think it's just of my shirt. I don't think the

jeans are in the picture.

Q.

Okay. All right. So after Mr. Mentaberry sat on

the couch, what happened?

A.

After a while, he was like petting the dog, and t

he moved the dog, and scooted closer to me.

Q.

A.

And he did what?

He scooted closer to me after he moved the dog.
And where was AH at this time?

She was sleeping on the other side of the couch.
Okay. And where was Maizie?

In her room.

And where were her friend?

In her room with her.

hen

Okay. Was there some way that you would be able to
if Maizie was going to come out of her room?

No. I think she fell asleep.

But that's only thinking, right?

Yeah. I didn't -- I wasn't sure.

Okay. And her friend was still there?

Yes.

And you thought maybe both of them were asleep?

I was just thinking -- I'm not exactly sure if they
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were Oor not.

Q. Okay. And do you know about what time it was that

Mr. Mentaberry moved the dog and moved closer to you?

A. Either 12:00 or 1:00. i

Q. Okay.

A. After midnight probably.

0. After midnight probably?

A. I can't exactly remember what time.

Q. Okay. And you don't even know i1f it was after

midnight?

A. It was. I know it was after midnight.

Q. Okay. And when he moved next to you, what happened?

A. Sorry, he like -- sorry. I'm sorry.

Q. Did Mr. Mentaberry talk to you before he moved

closer to you?

A. No.

Q. Okay. He didn't -- he didn't discuss -- you had

never met him before, right?

A. Huh-huh.

Q. And was there any discussion about whether you were

AH's older sister or anything like that?

A. He thought I was. Like when he was sitting on the

ground, he asked if I was AH's older sister, and I said

no, we're just friends.

Q. Okay. Was there any other conversation that you
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remember?

A. No.

Q. Okay. Was there any conversation between

Mr. Mentaberry and AH?

A. She just -- he -- the only conversation they had was
when he asked to sit on the couch, and she was like, oh,
yeah, it's okay.

Q. Okay. And just nothing else was said?

A. And after it happened, like what happened, after I
said stop, she told him to go upstairs, and it took him
like a few -- we had to tell him a few -- or a few times
to go upstairs.

Q. And she had to tell him more than once to get

upstairs?

A, Yes.

Q. How many times do you think that happened?

A. Maybe three times. I really don't know.

Q. Okay. And did Mr. Mentaberry then go upstairs?

A. Yeah, after we asked him a few times.

Q. After she told him?

A. Yeah.

Q. Well, you didn't tell him to go upstairs®?

A. No, AH did.

Q. Yeah, okay. Do you recall telling the officer that

Mr. Mentaberry was rubbing or scratching his dog that
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was sitting next to you?

A. No.

Q. You don't remember telling him that?

A. No.

Q. All right. Do you remember telling the detective,

Marshowsky, that Mr. Mentaberry might have been
inadvertently touching your leg as he was scratching the
dog?

A. I am not sure if he -- I can't remember if he was
doing that, but he was touching me.

Q. Okay. And then do you recall -- did Mr. Mentaberry

ever ask you how old you were?

A. Yes.
Q. And when was that?
A. Like I was trying -- like I was pretending to be

asleep when he was doing that, and then he woke me up.

He's like how old are you? And I told him, and he's

like --

Q. Let me stop you for a second. How did he wake you
up?

A. Well, I was just pretending to be asleep because I

was like I didn't know what to do. And so he nudged me,

and I looked at him, and he was like, how old are you?

Q. And how did he nudge you?
A. Like just like -- I don't know like --
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Q. He touched you someplace with his hand?

A. Yes.

Q. And do you remember where he touched you?

A. I think it was my breast.

Q. He touched your breast and then asked how old you
were?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And had he touched you in other places before
that?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Did the touching start with being touched on

the stomach?

A. Yes.

Q. Can you describe that a little further for the
Court.

A. After he moved the dog, he like -- his hand like

brushed against my side, and I didn't think he did it on
purpose, but then he kept like moving in. And then he

went down into my pants.

Q. Okay. And your pants were unbuttoned?
A. No, I just took my belt off.
Q. When did you do that?
A. Before I went to sleep.
Q. On the couch?
A. Yeah.
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you?

A. Yeah.

Q. Okay. And the touching started with what?

A, He brushed his hand on my side.

0. Okay. And did you realize that that was a -- some

kind of intentional act on his part?
A. At first, when he first touched me, I thought he
might have did it on accident, and then he kept doing it

and moved like more to the middle of my stomach.

Q. Excuse me, more --

A. More to the middle of my stomach.

Q. Okay. And he did that for a while?

A. Yeah. 1
Q. And then what?

A. He went in my pants.

Q. Okay. Okay, and then when was it that you pretendeg

to be asleep, started to pretend --

A. After -- when he was touching my stomach, and I like
felt it, and it like -- I pretended to fall asleep. I
thought maybe he would stop if I was asleep.

Q. And you could have gone to AH's ([sic] room or

anything like that?

A. AM's room?
Q. AM's room.
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A. Yes, I could have.

Q. But didn't?

A. Yeah. Yes, I didn't.

Q. And how come was that?

A. Well, I thought he would leave me alone after I go

to sleep or pretended to go to sleep, but he didn't.

Q. And he was rubbing your stomach, and you thought if
you just rolled over --

A. Yes.

Q. --— while he was rubbing your stomach, he would think
you were going to sleep?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And what steps did Mr. Mentaberry take to

make sure that AH didn't wake up?

A. She was already asleep, and he was like whispering
when he like asked me if I -- what my age was.
0. And you could have -- when you told him 14, did you

whisper that to him?

A. No, I said 14.

Q. I know what you said, but did you whisper it --
A. No.

Q. -- or did you say it --

And that didn't wake AH up?
A. Nope.

0. And then was there other conversation that he
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engaged in with you?

A. Yeah.

Q. What was that?

A. He asked me if -- sorry, he asked me if he can --
Q. Well, I'll help you out here. He asked you, I
guess, to -- if he could use his mouth on you; is that

correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And did he whisper that?

A. Yes.

Q. And what did you say?

A. No.

0. And did you say it loudly?

A. Yes. Well, I didn't yell it, but I said in a normal
voice.

Q. Okay. And that didn't wake AH up?

A. Nope.

Q. Okay. And did you make any other effort to --

A. Yes.

Q. -— touch her foot to wake her up or anything?

A. She was all the way across the couch so I couldn't

touch her to wake her up.
Q. Okay. And then he asked you, I guess, to spread
your legs?

A. Yes.
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- - - 1
Q. And you said?
A. No.
Q. Did you say that in a loud voice?
A. I said it in a normal voice.
Q. All right. Why didn't you yell it out?
A, I don't know. I was scared.
Q. Okay.
A. I didn't know what to do.
Q. I'm sorry?
A. I didn't know what to do.
Q. And did the alcohol consumption or the marijuana

consumption have any effect on your reasoning power?

A. No. It already wore off by then.

Q. The alcohol and the marijuana --

A, Yeah.

Q. ~-- were both gone by then?

A. Yes.

0. Okay. And this is all after 12:30, 1:00 o'clock?
A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And how long did the touching go on?

A. Maybe a few minutes, and then he tried to stick his

hand in my pants again. I kept pulling it out.
Q. Uh-huh.
A. And I told him to stop. I yelled stop, and then AH

woke up and told him to go upstairs.
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your vagina?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And what did AH say to that?

A. She just said she was sorry and like --

Q. Okay. And then after you told her that, what
happened?

A. We went into AM's room and locked the door.

Q. Okay. And then what happened?

A. He came back downstairs and tried to get in, and
then he was knocking on the door, and AM told him to go
away

Q. AM did?

A. Yeah. She didn't know, but she -- he was drunk so

she didn't want to deal with him.

Q.

that

How do you know that?
Because he drank.

I'm sorry, how did you know what AM's point of view

She told me.

Oh, she told you he was drunk, and I don't want to
him?

Yes.

Okay. And then did -- was there any conversation at

time about what had just happened to you?

No.
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Q. Okay. And when you say he knocked on the door, 1is
that the word that you used before on what he did?

A. Well, he like banged on the door and then kept
trying to open it.

Q. Okay. And AM was clearly aware that he was banging

on the door?

A. Yes.

Q. And so was AH?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Then the next -- then you slept in AM's room

the rest of night?
A. Yes.
Q. All right. And you don't remember what time you got

up and went home?

A. Maybe 10:00. I really don't remember.

Q. Okay. You had your cell phone with you?

A. Yes.

Q. And you had taken that into the -- AM's room with
you?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. So you -- while you were laying there and he
was -- had his hands on you, you had your cell phone

available?
A. It wasn't on me when he was -- it was charging

across the room when he was --
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Q. Okay. So after he went upstairs, then you went and

got it off the charger?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Then the next morning, he -- how did you get
home?

A. He took me home.

Q. All right. And who all did he take?

A. He took AM to her mom's house, and he tock AH home.

And Maizie road with him in the front seat.

Q. Maizie did?

A. Yeah.

Q. And where did he leave her?

A. I don't know. He dropped me off before he did

anything with her.
Q. Thank you.
MR. WOODBURY: I have no further questions.
THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Woodbury.
Mr. Slade, cross.
MR. SLADE: No, Your Honor, nothing on that.
THE COURT: Would you like this witness
retained, Mr. Woodbury?
MR. WOODBURY: No, that's fine.
THE COURT: Mr. Slade.
MR. SLADE: She can be released for the

State.
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THE COURT: So you're excused. Howewver, you
still cannot discuss your testimony and/or the case
until the conclusion of today's hearing.

AP: Okay.

THE COURT: You can have a seat outside.

Mr. Woodbury, do you rest, or are you calling
another witness?

MR. WOODBURY: No, I think I'm going to call
Detective Morrell back.

THE COURT: Detective Morrell.

Detective Morrell, you're still under oath.
Mr. Woodbury is going to have some questions for you.

THE WITNESS: Sure.

THE COURT: Go ahead, Mr. Woodbury.

MR. WOODBURY: Thank you, Your Honor.

JOSHUA MORRELL

(Recalled and previously sworn as a witness,

testified as follows)

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. WOODBURY:
Q. Detective Morrell, the -- after you learned about
the alleged touching of AP by Mr. Mentaberry, you were
the lead detective, right?
A. Yes, sir.

0. And you did a series, I suppose, of follow-up
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Q. Do you have any of the investigation that was dc
by you that -- in which a report was written that you

have not yet provided to the prosecution?

A. I'm sorry, I don't understand.

0. I'll try to do a little bit better.

A. Okay.

Q. Did you write any reports about this or have any

other physical evidence that you have not prepared and
have not yet passed on to the prosecution?

A. I don't believe so.

Q. Okay.

MR. WOODBURY: Thank you, I have no further
questions for the detective.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Woodbury.

Mr. S8lade, do you have any cross?

MR. SLADE: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Can Mr. Morrell be excused at
this time?

MR. WOODBURY: He may.

THE COURT: All right, you're excused,
Mr. Morrell. Don't discuss your testimony until the
conélusion of the case, please.

MR. MORRELL: Yes, sir.

MR. WOODBURY: The Defense rests.

THE COURT: Mr. Slade, any rebuttal
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witnesses?

MR. SLADE: Not on that, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Then are we going to move to
closing?

MR. SLADE: The State is prepared to, Your
Honor. If we could just let the witnesses know they're
released, and they'll be able to --

THE COURT: That will work. All right,

Mr. Slade, go ahead.

MR. SLADE: Your Honor, the State submits on
initial argument.

THE COURT: Mr. Woodbury.

MR. WOODBURY: The Defense will submit it on

-- without argument.

THE COURT: Mr. Slade, you have no argument,
no initial, Defense submitted.

MR. SLADE: Yes. Nothing further to present
as far as the argument goes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Mentaberry, do you
want to stand, please.

MR. WOODBURY: Your Honor, if it's
appropriate, we have a bail motion pending, and before
the Court binds him over, we would -- or gets rid of

jurisdiction, we would like to argue on the bail motion

if we can, please.
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THE COURT: All right, Mr. Woodbury. I
apologize for that. It is in here, and I overlooked it.
Go ahead with the bail motion.

MR. WOODBURY: Okay. We have submitted to

you the affidavit. The bail is presently set in the

amount of $500,000, which means that Mr. Mentaberry has
to come up with about $65,000 simply to meet the initial
cost of getting a bail bond. He Has a very limited
prior record, and it is of some time ago. He has a job.
He has a house. He has automobiles. He has -- I -- it
asserted that he had custody of his children, and he
does, but it's half custody. It's split between he and
his wife. He has a long standing Elko business that he
is the manager of, and it's a family-owned business by
the Mentaberry family.

And we have asked to have the bail lowered to
$20,000, and I -- the State has objected to that. But
Mr. Mentaberry has a lot of responsibilities, and we
delayed the -- this motion on the bail hearing until the
Court had an opportunity to hear the evidence in the
case. It doesn't take much to bind a defendant over,
but the Court knows there is some considerable
differences in the testimony of AH and AP that suggests
that AP is substantially exaggerating what happened.

And I would be -- it begins with the
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assertion by AH that AP first said that this was stomach
touching, nothing further. It is only AP later
identifying it as a vaginal touching, and that counts.
That's going to count for a lot. It gives a reasonable
opportunity for Mr. Mentaberry to provide a defense at
the time of trial.

And there is -- the reason that the
possibility of conviction, as a part of the bail
consideration, exists is that if it's a hopeless case,
you might have some worries about him leaving and never
coming back. If it stands a reasonable possibility of
an acqguittal, that is a significantly less dangerous
situation.

So we're asking that if you would reduce the
bail to something more manageable, even if it isn't
$20,000, something more manageable so he doesn't have to
try to find $65,000 to pay the bond. I mean, he could
probably come up with a collateral that the bail bonds
people need, but that's -- that humongous amount of
money, that $65,000 just goes out the window. He is --
there's no reason to think that he would run. He stands
a reasonable chance to get an acquittal. If he runs, he
knows the consequences of that.

So we're asking that the Court lower the bail

to some more reasonable amount so that he can have an

Nevada Dictation - (775) 745-2327

Respondent's Appendix Page 141




Respondent's Appendix Page 142



Respondent's Appendix Page 143



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

144

it did before this hearing.

Your Honor, the other thing that concerns the
State and the State wishes the Court to consider is the
seriousness of these crimes. Your Honor, if the
Defendant is convicted of Count 1, that comes with life
with a possibility of parole after 25 years. That is a
lot of incentive to leave this jurisdiction to avoid
that consequence.

Your Honor, these are just a brief highlight
of some of the things that were -- made mention of in
the State's opposition. The other issue that's of deep
concern to the State is, of course, witness tampering.
With the seriousness of these charges comes an upward
motivation to try to push against those who can lean
this case one way or the other, for example, AH and the
victim.

The State's deeply concerned about their not
being in contact with discussion regarding this case
regardless of whether or not the bail has changed, that
the State wants that condition added. The other issue
that was brought up in the State's motion, opposition to
the Defense's motion, is that clearly, alcohol played a
big role in this, and, thus, the State, regardless of
whether or not bail is changed or not, wants a no

alcohol clause, alcohol monitoring to be a part of any
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kind of bail in this ¢ 2.

They have -- again, that's a summary of the
main points made in the opposition itself, Your Honor.
And with that, the State will submit.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Slade.

Mr. Woodbury, do you have anything else?

MR. WOODBURY: Thank you, Your Honor.

Mr. Mentaberry has no problem with a no alcohol. If you
want alcohol monitoring, that's fine. We're not asking
to have him released on his recognizance. We're asking
-- you can have a substantial amount of bail. We're

Just trying to make it more reasonable. I have --

there, of course, is always an argument about
believability of witnesses and so on, and that's very
usual, and I'm sure the Court knows 1t, but it also
knows that there are some problems with the State's
case, whether they're insurmountable for Mr. Mentaberry
or insurmountable for the State, the Court can't know.
The point of it is is to establish that in
Mr. Mentaberry's head, he understands that he has some
possibility of escaping a conviction in this case at
that level. That's all. And it has to do with the
impetus for him to run away. And Mr. Mentaberry has a

substantial investment in the community and all of that

and is being advised right now, as I speak, that there
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are problems with the State's case, and it would be the
stupidest thing on the planet for him to run away from
it. Number one, because if his bail is adversely any
level, there's enough money for law enforcement to find
him.

So all we're asking for is a reduction in
bail. Witness tampering, it would be ridiculous to do

that. You can't tamper with a witness too good,

particularly one that's a teenager. And so it's kind of
a —-- in any event, 1f the Court could see fit to lower
the bail a significant amount, something more
reasonable.

There's a presumption of innocence, and I
realize that's just a presumption, but he has a lot of

things going on in his life outside of this case and

that he's not able to attend it if he can't get out on
bail.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Woodbury.

So due to the evidence that was =-- that's
been provided today to the Court through the preliminary
hearing, the crimes are substantial, the alleged crimes.
The alleged incidences that take place are substantial.
Mr. Woodbury, Mr. Slade, you have given both good
arguments. The Court will go ahead and reduce bail to

$100,000 bondable.
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And as far as the -- for the evider that
was produced at the preliminary hearing, on Count 1, or
in the alternative, Count 2, or in the alternative to

Counts 1 and 2, Count 3, Mr. Mentaberry, you're going to

be bound over to the Fourth Judicial District court for
further proceedings.

Is there anything else in this preliminary
matter we need to address?

MR. WOODBURY: No, thank you.

THE COURT: Then we'll be adjourned.

MR. SLADE: Not for the State, Your Honor.

(Whereupon, proceeding concluded).
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I STRUL..ONNO
In every crime or public offense there must exist a union, or joint operat  of act

intention.
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INSTRUCTION NO. _
Intention is manifested by the circumstances connected with the perpe « ¢

offensc, and the  ind mind and discretion of the person accused.
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IN.TRUC . .ONNO
“Sexual penetration”™ means any intrusion, however slight, of ai ola  son’s be
or any object manipulated or inserted by a person into the genital opening « - ebc 7« r

person,
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INSTRUCTION NQO.
A defendant’s voluntary intoxication is not a defense to SEXUAL ASSAL A

CHILD UNDERT  AGE OF 16 YEARS, and STATUTC .Y SEXUAL SEDUC" V.
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INSTRUCTION NO.
A 14 or 15 year-old child’s actual consent to a defendant’s sexual penetration « L

is not a defense to STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION.
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INSTRUCTION NO.

A defendant’s reasor  le and good faith belict that a child v he ¢« jectec  as
penetration was 16 years of age or older is not a defense to STATU” Y ! 1
. DUCTION.
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INSTRUCTION NO. _
There 1s no requircment that the testimony of a victim of a sexual offense be
corroborated, and her testimony standing alone, if believed beyo reas ledor s

sufticient to sustain a verdict of guilty.

Respondent's Appendix Page 197



Respondent's Appendix Page 198



Respondent's Appendix Page 199



Respondent's Appendix Page 200



Respondent's Appendix Page 201



Respondent's Appendix Page 202



Respondent's Appendix Page 203



INSTRUCTION NO.
Every member of the jury has been permitted to t - > notes durti— the trial.
you are cautioned not to rely upon your respective notes in the case of a

notes because the court reporter’s notes contain e Ol ithentic recol the
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-
over?" You will find that when we originally asked A.P.

-
phone discussions back and forth.

And it is our understanding, but we may be sh
to be wrong about that, that A.P. was taking a medication
that theoretically dealt with her depression and
self-esteen problems. What that medication is, you will
find out. Or perhaps they will deny having -- her having

But we tell you that because the testimony is
qoing to be from A.P. that she drank, I think, a single
drink from a bottle of rum and that she smoked a bong of
marijuana. And that she did that relatively early in the
evening of December 31, And that she did not consunme
enough to affect her, either the alcohol or the marijuana.

You will hear the testimony of A.H. and A.M. and
Mazy that it wasn't a little bit of any of it. There
was -- she consumed at least as nuch alcohol as A.H. did
and A.H. was, as I indicated earlier, somewhat intoxicated.

The fact, too, is that you will hear the
testinony of A.P. that when she was interviewed by
Detective Marshowsky that he beseeched her, from start to

And that when he asked if there had been any,
quote, weed -- which I assume you all know the meaning
of -- smoked, A.P. told hin yes, Wazy had smoked it but she

1

became known to A.P. who wasn't -- apparently was not there

Apparently A.P. will -- well, not apparently.
She did tell the first police officer who had interviewed
her, Wr. Craig, that that guy, right there, (indicating)

We think that the testimony will be that she
hasn't got a clue where she pulled that figure out from,
and it certainly doesn't accord with the truth of the
patter for what Kevin Wentaberry had to drink that night,

She will also testify that Kevin came downstairs
after Nate left and he confisc;ted the bottle of rum, And
her idea of confiscation is that he took it and drank it

Wr. Wentaberry will deny that.
AM., who was downstairs and might have seen him

A.H., who was around and might have seen him do
The evidence will show that in describing the

events that constitute the rape in the case, it began
with -- well, it didn't begin with Ms. Rangel, who is a

1 1

2 about that, that's how she said it. 2

3 A, will testify that A.P. had been -- the party |3

4 had been discussed well before that time with A.P. and A.P. |4

s told her she had other plans, and it was not until later in |5

6 the evening of December 31 when A.P. texted her and asked 6

7 if she could come over. 7 taken that medication,

8 we find that conflicting, but not important. 8

9 You are going to hear evidence that A.P. has had, |9

10 since at least the time she was 13, mental heaith problems, [10

11 problems with self-estees, and that she has been medically |11

12 treated for those problems with self-esteen throughout. 1

3 And to the extent that it will be implied to you |13

14 that this all -- this depression and the self-esteen 14

15 problens began on December 31 of 2017, you will hear Ik

16 evidence to the contrary. 16

iy Presunably you will hear it from A.P. herself. 17

18 But if you don't hear it from A.P. herself, you will hear |18

19 it from A.P's. mother, Ms. Eklund, and her grandmother, Ws. 19

2 Crabtree. 20

21 The -- some of the testimony, what's coming, we 21 finish in the interview, to be truthful.
22 are not a hundred percent sure of. 2

3 The -- it appears, and we'll ask questions about |23

2¢ this from A.P. and to her mother, that A.P. was being 24

25 treated by a psychiatrist in Las vegas, and it was thaough 25 hadn't.

1 You will hear testimony that when she got to 1

2 preliminary examination she changed her mind. 2 yet.

3 You will hear in closing argueent our analysis of |3

4 why that change was occasioned. 4

5 The testimony will also be that there was a 5

6 bottle of rum that appeared at the party. The testimony 6 drank two bottles of vodka that night.
7 will be that A.P. brought it from home. 7

8 There is also going to be testimony that Kevin -- |8

9 1 pertnear called him Kevin McKinney, who is a police 9

10 Tieutenant -- I'm going to have to be careful about that. |10

1 THE DEFENDANT: It's hard to hear you. 11 two bottles of vodka.

R MR. WOODBURY: 1I'm sorry. That's the first thing |12

13 1 have written up here is to talk Toud. Because I was 3

14 advised that I am not a loud talker and I should be and I |14

15 will be. 15 himself.

16 In any event, the testimony will be from A.X. and |16

17 Mazy that earlier in the evening Kevin had come down -- he |17
18 had a friend with him over there at the residence. The 18 do it if he had done that, will deny that.
19 residence is 162 Barite Street. 19

20 Kevin had a friend over there with hin and he and 20 it if he did it, will deny that.
21 the friend went downstairs. And lo and behold, they got in [21

22 Mazy's room and happened to see a bottle of vodka. Kevin |22

23 confiscated it so his daughters wouldn't be drinking. 23

24 He went back upstairs and ultimately Nate went 24 counselor and was counseling A.P.
25 home. And that fact, I think you will hear evidence, 25

What it began with was on the day -- probably the
y
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day after, but we are not sure. It was the day school
picked up again after New Year's. And since New Year's was
on a Sunday, it's conceivable the school picked up on
Tuesday or so.

A.P. didn't hide from A.M. that her father had
sexually molested her. You will hear and have heard
argument that somehow one of the things these teenage girls
do when they are molested is they hide it and they don't
say anything. You heard the -- you heard that she hid it
fron her mother.

The testinony of A.N. will be that A.P. not only
told A.M., she told her right smack dab in front of a bunch
of people at the school. And by the end of the day, A.P.'s
problens with Kevin Mentaberry were all over school.

The -- you will hear testivony from Or. Piasecki.
Dr. Piasecki will be shown to be a forensic psychiatrist
who deals with these kinds of things from start to finish
really and she is quite knowledgeable.

And she will tell you -- she will tell you about
these child rapists. And one of the things they do almost
inevitably is they groom these kids. They get these kids
in a position where they -- 1'11 give you money, I'11 give
you something, 1'11 do something for you, 1'11 do whatever
you want to do.

You will not hear A.P., describe anything Kexjn
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you a Tittle bit of a layout down in the Mentaberry
basement.

The Mentaberry basement is, as Mr. Thompson
pointed out to you, composed of two bedrooms, one in which
Mazy slept and one in which A.M, slept.

The door to Mazy's bedroom did not have a -- or
the bedrooe that Mazy was staying in with her friend
Cassidy didn't have a door on it. And the room that A.N.
was in was about 10, 15 feet from where all of this
happened.

And the point that they -- when A.M. went to bed
and asked A.H. and A.P. if they wanted to go to bed, A.P.
said no, that she wanted to stay up and watch a little
television.

It wasn't just television, it was Pretty Little
Liars.

And since we asked you on voir dire whether any
of you had any knowledge whatever of what the show Pretty

Little Liars was about for the eight years it was on
television, you will hear that it's about teenaged girls
who spend 50 percent of their time lying, getting other
people in trouble, threatening other people, pulling back
lying again.

whether or not you will hear testimony that those
kind of television shows affect young children,

1
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19
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22
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24
25

DNed .
Mentaberry did to her by way of grooming her. Period.

You will hear testimony from 0fficer Craig and
you will see a written statement by A.P. that during the
course of this rape Kevin Mentaberry unbuttoned her pants.

You will hear testimony from her at the
preliminary examination that he didn't, that he just got
down inside her pants.

we tried to persuade the Elko Police
Department -- we talked to Josh Morrell, who is a
detective, about it. We tried to persuade him to get the
clothes, at Teast get a picture of then.

We have a sheet of paper signed by A.P. that she
was five-foot-five or five-foot-six inches tall and weighed
145 pounds and had a pair of Levi pants -- Levi -- what do
they call them -- some kind of pants that are tight.

And it must have become evident to her in some
way at sometime that if Kevin Mentaberry was going to get
his hands down her pants, that was going to be a big chore
if he didn't get them unbuttoned.

But by the preliminary hearing, when she
testified, she testified "he didn't unbutton my pants.”
Period. We will of course be asking her questions about
why that was not initially said.

You will hear that when it came tine, when A.M.

said she was going to be bed -- first of all, let me give
11
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18
19
20
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2
23
24

particularly those with self-esteem problems, I don't know.

You will decide that.

You will also hear that when A.P. told A.K. and
half the school about her having been raped, the friendship
between A.P., A.M., A.H. and A.T. ended. And it ended on
that Monday.

We suggest to you that you will be thinking about
how A.P. would react to that,

The testimony of A.P. will be that when A.H. woke
up, she was Tying on her side, facing away from
Nr. Nentaberry.

AH.'s testinony would be she was sitting up
looking at her cell phone.

Now, there is going to be a question about that.
You will hear A.P. having said that she didn't have her
cell phone, it was over being charged.

However, it was in her hand at the time that A.H.
Tooked at her,

We asked the police officers, Find out what the
heck is on that cell phone, will you? Will you please get
that cell phone? wWe would Tike to know if that was what
was making her sad.

Did we get the cell phone? You will find that we
did not. They didn't make any effort whatever to get it.

So now we don't know what her clothes 1ookeg
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like, we don't know how they fit, ana we don't what was on
the cell phone.

gut if you look at it, you will find that A.P.
has got herself in a position where she had some other
arrangements for New Year's and they went to pieces.

If you Took at it, she has Tost friends.

But it's going to be shown to be worse than that.

when Mr. Mentaberry went upstairs, you will hear
that A.P. said he couldn't get up the stairs and he
wouldn't go and he fought her.

And A.H. is going to come in here and say she
said, "Kevin, will you go upstairs,” or something. And he
went upstairs.

There was no fight about it. No nothing. He
simply went upstairs.

He was intoxicated. How intoxicated, we're going
to have a massive amount of information for you about that,
all right, so you can know whether or not he totally Tost
his brains or not.

The case, ladies and gentlemen, is going to be
complicated.

It's complicated because there is not an iota of
evidence to corroborate what A.P. is telling you.

And when Kevin Hentaberry gets on the witnesses
stand and says, "I never touched her," there is not an iota

1
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of evidence, direct evidence at least, that he is not lying
through his teeth.

S0 you are going to have to draw some rational,
theoretically psychological conclusions about why little
A.P. would be making this terrible story up about Kevin
Mentaberry if it didn't happen.

The defense has a theory and we will explain it
to you in infinite detail. As you can see, I am kind of
inclined that way. And you can make your minds up whether
or not you believe her or you believe hin,

There is a lot more coming. And, again, we have
confidence that you have the patience and the will and the
intelligence to figure this out. And that you will, as
you've kind of indicated, not Tet your emotional attachment
to poor Tittle 14-year-old girls get the best of your
intelligence.

Thank you.

(WHEREUPON, defense's opening statement was concluded
at 5:01 p.n.)
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Case No. CR-FP-18-5030

Dept. II

IN THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF

NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ELKO

00000 .
THE STATE OF NEVADA
Plaintiff,
V. . JURY TRTIAL
KEVIN JOHN MENTABERRY, : DEFENSE CLOSING ARGl ENT
Defendant.
/

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled matter
came on for hearing on January 27, 2020, at the hour of
9:35 a.m. of said day, in Elko, Nevada, before the

HONORABLE ALVIN R. KACIN, District Judge.

Stenographically Reported by Lisa M. Manley, CCR No. 271
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PROCEEDINGS

1 APPEARANCES 1
2 2 THE COURT: Thank you Mr. Thompson
3 For the Plaintiff: CHAD B. THOMPSON, ESQ. 3 Argunent for the defense today, Mr. Woodbury?
ETko County Deputy
4 District Attorney 4 MR. WOODBURY: Thank you, Your Honor,
540 Court Street . , ,
5 g§§gnnglggg 89801 5 The quesF1on, ?f Fourfe, is why in heaven's name
b (775§ 738-3101 6 would A.P. make this up if it didn't happen?
/ 7 That should be the first question that is on your
g For the pefendant: GARY D. WOODBURY, ESQ. 8 mind: what in heaven's name would she make this up for?
1053 1daho Street A . . ,
Y E;;?j T 9 That question did not come as a big surprise to
10 10 the defense, It's clear from day one of all of this that
11 11 there had to be some reason if Kevin Mentaberry didn't
i) 12 touch her.
13 3 You all agree with that, I'm sure.
14 14 In order to do that, the first thing you have to
15 15 do is ask yourself what you know about A.P. You have to
16 16 ask that question.
17 17 The prosecution suggests she was just a normal,
18 18 everyday, ordinary girl.
19 19 Baloney. She was not an ordinary, everyday sort
20 20 of girl from square one. She started going to Rangel
il 21 because she tried to commit suicide when she was in the
22 22 seventh grade, for heaven's sake.
bE 23 Does that strike you as an ordinary, everyday
1 24 girl?
5 2 25 what was going on in her mind? 3
1 Well, we don't know. we don't know because the 1 You heard her mother. Her mother works in
2 prosecution won't bring somebody here, Tike a psychiatrist |2 Carlin. They Tive in Elko. Her mother goes to work before
3 out of Las Vegas, to say what in heaven's name is in her 3 she Teaves for school and comes home after she gets home.
4 mind. 4 The child is essentially Tiving by herself, because her
5 That's not our problem; that's their problen. 5 stepfather works the same sequence and her sister lives in
6 If they want to come in here and put a child on 6 Reno.
7 the witness stand under those circumstances, it seems 7 That's the 14-year-old girl that we're talking
8 reasonable, if they want you to convict him beyond a 8 about, just to start,
9 reasonable doubt based on her testimony and her reliability |9 Second, it's kind of the reason we started out
10 and her truthfulness, that's what you do. 10 with her father. Every child has a natural father. A.P.
1 Did they bring the doctor from Las vegas? No. 11 is no exception. And if you recall, we showed her a post
b, Who did they bring? 12 or whatever you call it on the Facebook or the Smapchat or
13 They brought Melissa Piasecki, who spent an hour |13 whatever it is, in which she said, "Dad, why do you buy a
14 talking to her and her mother. That's the psychiatric 14 pickup rather than paying child support?”
15 testimony that you have about her and that's what you know. |[15 That's this Tittle child who is afraid, who is
16 And they have Ms. Rangel. You all sat here and (16 just a natural, everyday, ordinary child, who is too afraid
17 you watched Ms. Rangel. You know how good she is at her 17 to do anything to Kevin Mentaberry when he starts to rape
18 job. Clearly you had to see that. 18 her, but she is willing to say to her dad, why buy a
19 So let's talk a Tittle bit about the 19 pickup, buddy, when you should be paying child support.
20 circunstances of A.P., the one where she is an ordinary, 20 And what happened? The child support -- the dad
21 everyday kid. 21 writes back and says "you don't know what you're talking
2 She was 14 years old at the time of -- on 22 about." And she writes to hin and says we're with,
23 December 31, and she was about to become 15. She was a 23 it's over, no more mother -- or father-child relationship.
24 couple nonths away from being 15 years old in February of |24 Do you suppose that mattered to her? How do you
25 2018, 25

4

suppose -- what was in her mind, while she is saying such
§
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Rangel has got her all doing well. She is taking

1 things? 1

2 Is that just an ordinary, everyday child? 2 medication. Rangel doesn't know what the medication is.

3 You are going to have to answer that, 3 She is sending her homework home to fill out stories or

4 She couldn't even remember, but do you remember 4 something about -- about bringing her to grips with hersalf

5 when that took place? That took place on December 27. 5 and she is doing fine.

6 Three days before this event with Kevin Mentaberry. Three |6 She tells Rangel, "I want to go to my father.”

7 days. 7 And Rangel just tosses it aside, it don't mean anything.

8 You want to talk about Dr. Rangel and her 8 Who is supposed to know that?

9 analysis of everything. what did Rangel say? well, she 9 These guys. Not us.

10 said she was going to go back with her dad. 10 Kevin Mentaberry is an ordinary, run-of-the-mill
11 Does that tell you about the child? 11 guy who has got a job and a house and kids and a car. He
i) That's what she told Rangel she wanted to do. 12 1is not a private investigator and he is not a police
3 Did she tell Rangel she had terminated the 13 officer and he is not a prosecutor
14 relationship with him? 14 That's what they got.

15 Did she tell Rangel that she had posted a meme, |15 When they get those cases, that's what they are

16 whatever in Heaven's name that is, on the electronic media |16 supposed to do. Not leave Rangel in the dark.

17 that said "my mother is insane"? 7 So who was the follow-up detective, ladies and
18 That's the child we're talking about. 18 gentlemen?

19 That's the family we're talking about. 19 Do you all remember?

20 We asked her mother, "Did you ever see that?" 20 Do you all remember up there the name Josh

21 "well, I don't remember." 21 Morrell?

2 Do you suppose this is common, ordinary stuff for 22 Do you all remember that Marshowsky said? "I am
23 15- or 14-year-old kids to be posting is "ny mother is 23 just the forensic interviewer. That's all I do."

24 insane"? 24 If you want corroboration, we go to Josh Morrell.
25 And what happened when she told Rangel thati 25 Did you see Josh Morrell testify here? No.7

1 Why not? 1 So how does A.P. -- that's a nothing proposition. There is

2 From our point of view, it's because he didn't do |2 no trauma involved in that necessarily.

3 nothing. Because if they would have found any evidence, 3 So how come there is no party and she says there

4 they would have put it on. And they didn't. 4 is a party and that she was the guy, the Tady, who had to

5 There is no corroborative evidence. 5 keep -- keep the kids in Tine and had to clean it up?

6 There is no effort on their part to find out just |6 Is that in her head?

7 how much trouble this little girl has got. 7 0f course it is. That's what she said.

8 For heaven's sake, you can review the Marshowsky |8 Does that mean anything?

9 interview from now to breakfast and you aren't going to 9 Who knows? who knows? You certainly don't know.
10 find nothing in there about her mental health problens. 10 And there is no way to figure it out. It's just
11 Didn't talk about them. 11 that if she dreams something up, you don't know why she is
12 But the cops are supposed to know it. The 12 dreaming that stuff up, other than she has got significant
13 prosecutor is supposed to it. It's not up to us to try to |13 nmental health problems concerning anxiety, self-esteem and
14 figure it out. Kevin Mentaberry never knew the girl 14 depression.

15 before. 15 Does she want attention? Does she want people to
16 AlT right. You will remember her testimony, 16 feel sorry for her because she was saddled with that task?
17 A.P.'s testimony, about what she did the day of -- 17 How are we to know?

18 before -- or the day of New Year's Eve. She stayed hone 18 That's why you go and you bring the psychiatrist
19 and watched a bunch of her nephews and nieces because there |19 up and ask him those kinds of questions.

20 was a party at her house. And she had to clean up 20 When you have got a child who is taking four

21 afterward. 21 medications prescribed by a psychologist or psychiatrist in
2 That's her Tife, 22 Las vegas, don't you have to find -- Took a Tittle further?
23 But there was also a question. What is the 23 Don't you have to worry about it?

24 question? 24 If she's told Rangel she is going with her

25 25

Her mother came in and said there was no party.
8

father, if she's holding back information, if she is having
3

Respondent's Appendix Page 219



[

-wr—

. - . .
have to do with their parents being the principal players

1 to work at a party, don't you have to Took a Tittle closer? |1

2 That's what cops are for, isn't it? 2 in the game. And as time  ses, their peers become the

3 But it didn't even come close to ending there. 3 principal players in the game.

4 It didn't even come close. 4 We assume, the defense assumes, you have seen

5 0fficer Craig comes in, tells you A.P. saw, or at |5 that.

6 Tleast said she saw Kevin Mentaberry drink two bottles of 6 So what happens when she doesn't have any

7 vodka that day. You all remember that? 7 friends?

8 Wasn't true. 8 You heard A.M. testify to that,

9 She testified to it. 9 You heard A.H. testify that A.M. had gone to and
10 Does that sound Tike someone that you want to 10 started to try to make a friend out of A.P. because she

11 believe beyond a reasonable doubt? 11 didn't have any friends.

1 You just read that instruction that says if you |12 Can you imagine Tiving in that world? Your

13 believe her testimony beyond a reasonable doubt, you don't |13 relationship with your father is cut off. Your relationship
14 need any corroborative evidence. 14 with your mother is one where she thinks she is insane.

15 You got a gal who says that this guy who raped me (15 Your relationship with your peers isn't -- there aren't any
16 drank two bottles of vodka. 16 relationships with peers except for A.P., A.N., A.T. and

7 She didn't see it. 17 A

18 She also had Mentaberry drinking her rum. It 18 That's her life.

19 changed. Her Malibu rum she brought over. 19 So when did she lose these friends?

20 He also molested her, 20 Well, let's go the other way.

2 So let's take the next step with A.P. 2 After the behavior of Mr. Mentaberry that

2 In her world, A.P. is way short of friends. 22 resulted in this rape or molestation or sexual assault or
3 I'n assuming most all of you have children or 23 whatever we're calling it, she was sitting up on her bottom
24 have been around children and see that children's Tives, 24 looking at a cell phone, according to A.H.

25 for a period of time after they are born and start scﬂfol, 25 what was on the cell phone? i

1 You remember the quy Josh Morrel1? If you want 1 cell phone was over being charged, she couldn't possibly

2 to know why somebody is, quote, crying while looking at 2 have had it in her hand. well, lo and behold, she did,

3 their cell phone, you might want to know what they were 3 if AH. knows what she's talking about.

4 Tlooking at, mightn't you? 4 what did she tell -- well, I will stop for a

5 where is he at? 5 second and tell you, I am fully aware that any lawyer that
6 That's their problem. Not our problem; their 6 yaps over 20 minutes is very 1ikely to have a jury go,

7 problen. 7 (yawns), "no more, please."

8 Who knows what was on that cell phone. 8 But I really have no choice, Tadies and

9 You also remember that the child, A.p., said that !9 gentlemen. I wish I did, but I don't.

10 she didn't have any prior arrangements for New Year's Eve. 10 What did she tell A.H.?

11 Turned out, according to A.M.'s testimony, she did. They |u1 "He touched my stomach.” Period. That's it.

12 fell through. i¥] If you take that and you put that in terms of

13 Who was the arrangements with? 13 Dr. Piasecki's expertise that these guys typically don't

14 A.P. doesn't remember. A.M. doesn't know it. 14 release it for at Teast seven days, she released it in four
15 Did something -- did she have something -- she 15 or five minutes after it happened, if it actually happened.
16 said she had already turned down an invitation with her 16 when did it turn into, he did a whole Tot more

17 four friends, her four close friends, and that's according |17 than touch my stomach?

18 to A.P., she had turned down their invitation and had 18 That's the kind of a hard question. It's hard to
19 something apparently better to do. 19 say.

2 And it had fallen through. 20 she talked to A.T. the following day. A.M. --

2 Did it occur to you that she might be Tooking at 21 no, I think that was A.H. texted her the following day and
22 that cell phone and be getting information about something |22 asked her if she was all right.

23 she ain't Tiking to hear. 23 She had already revealed it. And it was a stomach
24 But it goes beyond that, ladies and gentlemen. 24 touch.

25 she denied having a cell phone with her -- or her 25 When did it become a full blown rape?

1
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And there is no talking to her.

After people started pushing her. 1

You remember that her mother testified, A.P.'s 2 Another problem.
nother testified that she never saw any changes in A.P. for |3 Now her Tife is apparently without her good
the next two, three, four days. 4 friends. Do you remember A.M. testifying about she had no

This trauma apparently didn't hit for two or 5 other significant friendships?
three days. And then it started to hit. And you may 6 Do you think that that -- how -- when it's a big
notice that's after the conversation with A.T. who said, 7 part -- peers are a big part of your Tife, do you think
apparently, "keep your mouth shut." 8§ that doesn't count?

And Mom, assuming there was a party on the day 9 She cries incessantly.
before New Year's, may not have a good memory. 10 Are you under the impression that this was just a

It could have also started on the first day of 11 trauma being created by this -- this tough questioning that
school. I think it was January 8 we decided. Because 12 sent her off that witness stand I don't remember how many
January 1 was a Monday and January § was the day that 13 times, at Teast three, maybe four times, while she was
school started. 14 testifying?

And you may recall that on January §, A.M. 15 Do you think that has nothing to do with "please
testified that's when she revealed this long stretch of 16 feel sorry for me"?
nolestation that Kevin Mentaberry perpetrated on her. 7 You can watch the Marshowsky interview, I gather,

And nobody was buying it. 18 and they want you to Took at it, of A.P.

So why would she go from a stomach touch to that? |19 Look at how many times she cried in that one.

Because there is no other communication. There 20 Zero.
is no other communication with her friends. 21 She can do it. 1It's for your attention. For you

Because obviousTy you would think we lost our 22 to feel sorry for her.
ninds if we suggested to you that this wasn't being batted |23 And it sounds 1ike we're picking on her, and I
around between A.N. and A.T. and A.H. 24 assure you that the defense is not.

They're friends. It's a big concern. . 25 She is a troubled young woman. And this idjfcy
of how the Taw proceeds is tough. 1 what does that mean?

You heard Narshowsky testify that the worst thing |2 It means that A.P. is not particularly married to
that could happen is 0fficer Craig, an Elko street police 3 a clear -- not married to the proposition that she has got
officer, talk to her about all this. 4 to be direct and straightforward.

He has no idea what kind of pressure he put on 5 Okay. we'll move off of A.P. for a while.
her. Not a clue. 6 Well, one more, I guess. You recall the

And officer Craig acknowledged that; he didn't 7 testimony of A.P. after she relearned everything when she
know how bad he was screwing up. 8 went back at noon and read her statement? A1l of a sudden

Does it matter? 9 it was A.H. asking Kevin to leave, and Kevin saying, "No,

Defense obviously thinks it does. 10 I'11 stay down here and I am not going to leave," and A.H.

You remember that A.P. testified -- let me go 11 finally having to force him to go upstairs.
back and start that one all over. 1 A.H. says that didn't happen. Period

This all began, according to Ms. Eklund, when she (13 Now, A.H. has probably ingested too much alcohol
called Ns. Rangel. 14 and too much marijuana, but she recalled that very clearly,

And then when we had Ms. Rangel on the witness 15 You also remember the testimony about -- from
stand, it all happened when she called Ms. Eklund not about |16 A.P. -- or not the testimony. Well, I guess it was the
problens the kid was having but about not showing up for 17 testimony -- where we asked her if she told Marshowsky
her appointments, and I have got to either be seeing her in |18 about admitting that and having smoked marijuanma at the
an appointment or I got to release her. 19 party.

Which way did it go. 20 You all renember that?

You remember A.P. testifying that she didn't want |2 And she told him no. Mazy had, but not me.
to tell Rangel anything so she asked it in the context of |22 There's another deception to Marshowsky.
something having happened to her friend. 23 It's a deception that Josh Morrell should have

Do you remember Rangel saying that that 24 found out about. And it's a deception Josh Morrell didn't
conversation didn't happen? 25

Took at. or if he did, he didn't come tell you about it.
17
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This idea that you make up stories, that A.P. is

capable of making up a story that will hurt somebody, and
she really wouldn't do that. Why would she make up a story
about Kevin Mentaberry if it wasn't true?

She made up a story about Mazy. Or at least
elininated her, what she thought she might have a problen
about, even though she implicated Mazy, she thought she was
inplicating Mazy, turns out she had a medical marijvana
permit. But she thought she was.

Think about her reaction to what she said
Wr. Mentaberry was doing.

First of all, Mentaberry never looked up to see
if AH. was awake. Never Tooked up to see if somebody,
Mazy or a friend, had come out of the room or A.M. had come
out of the room.

And he was whispering. Ladies and gentlemen, if
he was whispering, he was trying to hide it.

He had -- he is not so drunk he doesn't know what
he is doing. He is trying to hide it. If he has got
enough brain power to whisper, he has got enough brain
power to know what he's doing is wrong.

And how did she answer? "I answered in a normal
voice."

Got kind of confusing about how many times she
told him to stop. And then she thought stop -- one oﬂ the
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But he didn't.

She is 140 pounds, you'll remember the testimony.
She is Taying on her side with her back toward Kevin. He
sticks his hand down her pants and sticks his finger in her
vagina.

You are all adults. I don't know how you are
going to talk about it in deliberation, but you are not
going to reach a conclusion that's a very Tikely
possibility.

It may well be physically imgossible.,

Okay. The dog Tocation. This all started, as
you will recall, from her testimony saying that Kevin was
scratching the dog and inadvertently, she thought, might be
touching her thigh, her outer thigh, and then he moved the
dog, this 60- or 70-pound dog, moved it over on top of
AH. -- or by A.H.

Again, we put him on the witness stand for you to
see if he was an idiot, to at Teast show you he was of
average intelligence.

If you are about to molest a 14-year-old kid, why
would you move your dog over to the nearest eye witness so
that the dog can move around or do whatever in the heck it
is that dogs do? Is the dog just going to lay there? Can
you count on it?

A.P. said he never Tooked at A.H., never Tooked
20
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"stops" had woken A.H. up on the couch.

A0, testified that what woke her up, she wasn't
sure of, but thought it was the dog moving.

So if he didn't want A.H. to e up, why in
heaven's name would you put the dog over by A.H.?

We put Kevin on the witness stand to et you have
a look at him as at Teast a man with reasonable
intelligence.

Our assumption is that you concluded he at Teast
reached that level.

She had the will power to resist by talking in a
normal voice.

This is theoretically the last part of at least
the first part of the closing.

She told you that after Kevin touched her
stomach, at Teast at some point before he inserted his
finger into her vagina, that she had rolled over and was
pretending to be asleep on the couch.

She confessed to having originally told officer
Craig that he had unbuttoned her pants, and that, in fact,
he never had.

I don't know why she backed up from that. Maybe
you don't either. But that was what she told Craig because
that is what the testimony is. And that's right there in

Craig's report. It's also in Rangel's report.
18

to see whether A.H. was awake.

He is making propasitions to her. He wants to
touch her. He wants to do other things. He wants her to
cooperate.

And he's not Tooking at A.H. to see this dog.

The door banging. Do you remember the door
banging?

There are four girls in that basement who did not
hear a door banging by Kevin Nentaberry and one that did:
AP,

Ladies and gentlemen, think about it for an
instant, would you?

why would you go back downstairs to bang the
door?

What -- what's the point, other than to say that
he is just continuing to act like an idiot?

What was he trying to accomplish with door
banging?

what could he possibly accomplish with the door
banging?

Grooming. Dr. Piasecki said that grooming is
when you start to touch Tadies, and you touch them a little
bit here first, see how they react, and then you touch m
other places and see how they react.

And we suggest to you that what grooming meﬁns in

Respondent's Appendix Page 222



W o o U B o

L T A T N T S T S
L S O R — T =T = R R R R Y =

-
the natural world and in the common sense of every human

being on the planet aside from Dr. Piasecki is that you do
things to persuade the lady to say okay.

You compliment them. You offer them things. Do
you want to come upstairs? You separate then.

Anybody's common sense tells you that ladies are
not likely to consent to those kind of activities in the
company of other people.

Did he do it? No.

Give her some more rum. Did he do it? No.

Well, the State says he is just too drunk to know
that he had to do something Tike that.

You all think that's true?

If he would have brains enough to ask if he could
sit on the couch based on the proposition that he thought
they might be unconfortable if he sat on the couch there,
he is thinking about moral and social values; is he not?

He is evaluating them. He is behaving according
to those values.

Dr. Piasecki talked about the difference between
an i1lusion, a delusion, and just being mixed up because
you're drunk. And that was the jumping-over-the-fence
question.

I would assume that we all recognize that alcohol

tends to make you feel a Tittle stronger and more powerful
i
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than usual.

It doesn't make you a blind idiot. You might do
some stupid things. But it doesn't make you forget moral
and social values.

It might be something that you would do that was
stupid and you might hurt yourself, but it doesn't e you
forget your moral values.

So let's add one other 1ittle thing. You heard
the discussion about the pretty Little Liars,

So if you are A.P. and you got no friends exc
these four, your party plans for New Year's have been
disrupted and you had to settle for something that was a
Tittle Tess exciting, you are mad at your old man, your
mother is insane and your father is a crack head, your
natural father is a crack head, how much impact do you
think television has on this girl?

She sat there and watched Pretty Little Liars.
We know, and have had confirmed at least slightly, that
it's about pretty young teenage girls who lie.

A.P. said she just barely watched it; she doesn't
know nuch about it. A.H. said it was A.P. that picked the
show.

If that's the world that the Pretty Little Liars
Tive in, why wouldn't it be at Teast arguably somewhat

attractive to A.P. where you could tell Ties and create
i}

situations and make things happen?

¥ho knows?

That's what they watched.

What show was on that night? what show did they
see?

Remenber Josh Worrel1? That's what you look at.

You take a Took. If this girl is changing things
fron kevin Mentaberry unbuttoning her pants to not
unbuttoning, to taking her belt off prior to going to
sleep, that's what you look at.

You start to wonder, is she being truthful? Is
she telling us everything?

Is Pretty Little Liars -- if you read the
Marshowsky thing, she is very clear about that's what they
watched.

why wouldn't you Took to see if maybe there was a
Tittle sonething on that night about something similar to
this?

From our point of view, Dr. Piasecki didn't know
what the other two medications were. She did not know
particularly what the affect of Tamictal was on the girl
and whether she was acting under an illusion or a delusion.

We have no clue. Not a clue. It'sa
possibility.

Lamictal is a possibility.
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The other two medications she was taking in
December are not a possibility; they are happening.

But the delusion is the question.

here were her pants? Where was the shirt she
was wearing on December 317 Did you hear about that?

Did you see Josh Morrell show up and testify to
you that "we have Tocated them, here they are, we'll show
it to you"? Do you think anybody would be interested in
that?

Do you think any realistic cop on the street
after hearing that she had her back turned toward Kevin
Wentaberry, with her pants buttoned and weighed 140 pounds,
that a cop wouldn't want to have a Took at them pants and
see just how possible that was?

Is that our fault? we're supposed to do
something about that?

That's theirs.

here is A.T.?

If A.T. knows something, why isn't she here? why
wasn't she subpoenaed?

The better question, ladies and gentlemen, is if
the State has charged this offense in three different ways,
rape, they call it sexual assault, but step one, it 0
be against her will or under circumstances  re it' ar
she doesn't know what is going on.
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Clearly they could show that because that's what
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to -- or dome what A.P. says to her in front of four other

1 1

2 they have charged. 2 girls or where they could walk two feet and ook out and

3 The second charge is in the alternative. Well, 3 see hinm doing it.

4 if he didn't rape her and she didn't -- she consented, 4 But it's better than that.

5 well, that's a crime too. She is only 14 or 15 years old. |5 We wanted you to have a look at somebody who

6 It's statutory sexual seduction. 6 testifies honestly.

7 If you are so sure that she was a Tady who did 7 It's staggering. "How drunk were you, Kevin?"

8 not consent or lived under conditions where she couldn't 8 "Nine drinks, nine beers over a five- or six-hour
9 and he should have known she couldn't consent, what do you |9 period.”

10 charge the other count for? 10 "Did you fall down?"

1 Kind of as a backstop. 1 "No, I didn't fall down, I fell the whole way

1 Third, Tewdness with a minor. Same thing. 12 down the stairs."

13 They are the quys who select what they are going |13 Do you think that Kevin Mentaberry doesn't think
14 to charge. And what they have selected are essentially 14 that you are going to think about that? That a jury

15 crimes in which she could have consented. 15 wouldn't think about him falling all the way down the

16 We are not suggesting to you in any way, shape or [16 stairs as an indication of just how drunk he was?

17 form that's so, but it shows you how much they know about  [17 But it's better than that. He knows that you are
18 their case too. 18 going to think about it.

19 Okay. As I have indicated to you on a number of |19 Nobody throughout the trial had said he fell all
20 different occasions, we put Kevin Mentaberry on the witness 20 the way down the stairs until Kevin Mentaberry said it.
21 stand to let you have a Took to see if he was of ordinary |1 That tells you a Tittle something about Kevin

22 intelligence. 22 Nentaberry: He is not going to try to deceive you.

3 Because the view of the defense is that a person 23 And if you don't buy that one, if you think that
24 of ordinary intelligence, being about as drunk as Kevin 24 one's too lightweight, what about the dog?

25 Mentaberry was, there is no chance he would have triei 25 AH. sat right there and contradicted A.P. 5bout
1 the Tocation of the dog. She said, "That dog was by my 1 where nobody saw you, nobody could say yea or nay?"

2 Tegs when he sat down." 2 What is the truth? "veah, I had one."

3 Given that A.P, testified, and Kevin Mentaberry 3 Why would he tell you that if he was not trying
4 sat right there and listened to it, that it was the dog 4 to abide by the rule that said testify truthfully?

5 petting that was by her side that started this thing, do 5 Finally, the apology.

6 you think that Kevin Mentaberry wanted you to -- wanted to |6 We had testimony from A.P. that the apology

7 contradict A.H.? 7 occurred to her alone.

8 AbsoTutely not. He would have to be a bonehead 8 Mazy said that there was no apology issued. "I'm
9 to do that. 9 sorry for my drunken behavior," his drunken fool behavior
10 Or he would have to be swearing to tell the truth |10 He can Tive with that, he's got a toss up.
11 and do it. And he did it. 1 Mazy is every bit as credible as A.P. is.

n He sat right there on that witness stand, knowing (12 Possibly more.

13 full well that A.H. had taken that dog out of the picture |13 “Did you apologize?”

14 as something that had started this molestation, and at a 14 “Yep. Sorry for acting 1ike a drunken fool."

15 bare mininum he said, "I don't know where the dog was.” 15 That was not an apology for raping A.P. It was
16 If he has got average intelligence, he knows how |16 not an apology to her alone. But it was an apology that
17 important that is. He would have to be -- well, you figure (17 was a mixed bag for this jury.

18 that out. That's a big issue. 18 And it shows you that sitting over there is a quy
19 Not satisfied yet? 19 who testified truthfully.

2 "Did you take a drink out of that vodka after you [20 "Did you touch her?"

21 confiscated it and took it upstairs?” 21 “No." Period. "I did not touch her."

2 Kevin Mentaberry is of ordinary intelligence and |22 Ladies and gentlemen, that's the end of it.

23 he knows that this jury is going to be considering how 23 I realize it's Tong and it's complex. And I

24 intoxicated he was. 24 realize that you are not probably very excited about

25 25 sitting there and examining every piece of evidence and

"Did you take a drink out of it upstairs, Kevin,
28
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every argument that has been made.

The crime that Kevin Mentaberry is charged with
is right at the top of the Tist. It's a Class A felony.

It has meaning to him far beyond what you can
inagine.

So we hope that rather than get your emotions
involved, feeling sorry for A.P., which we all do, that you
will sit down and Tisten and think about what happened
during this trial.

And when you are done doing that, we expect you
to acquit him.

THE COURT: Thank you for your argument,

Hr. Woodbury.
(WHEREUPON, defense's closing argument was concluded
at 10:27 a.n.)
00000
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